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1. Company introduction

GEVORKYAN, a.s. was founded as a family company in Banskda Bystrica
in 1996. Its founder and current majority shareholder is an aeronautical engineer
Dipl. Ing. Artur Gevorkyan, originally Armenian, who built the company "on a green field".
GEVORKYAN, Inc. builds on the experience of two generations of the family
in the field of powder metallurgy.

Today, it is aleader in powder metallurgy within Europe and one of the most innovative companies
in this sector worldwide. The company is a manufacturer of various types of components using
powder metallurgy (PM) and metal injection moulding (MIM) technologies for the automotive,
petroleum, cosmetics and agricultural industries, hand tools, locks and security systems,
healthcare, air-conditioning and defence industries. The company does not have a branch abroad.

Metal parts, manufactured in GEVORKYAN, a.s.



GEVORKYAN, a.s. is the holder of many prestigious Slovak and international awards, such as:

"Diamonds of Slovak Business" in the category of the most dynamically growing company in 2012,
2013, 2020 and 2021.

Exceptional Company 2020" TUV SUD awarded GEVORKYAN, a.s. Certificate of Excellence for its
contribution in promoting innovation.
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The company was awarded a special prize from the Industrial Property Office for the development
of its unique Covid-19 masks.
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In 2018, GEVORKYAN, a.s. received the highest award from the European Powder Metallurgy
Association (EPMA) during the international trade fair in the Netherlands: the absolute victory in
the "EPMA Component Awards 2018 - Structural Parts Category", which focuses on the most
innovative solutions in the field of powder metallurgy with a significant contribution to cost savings,
quality improvement, encouragement to further use of PM, uniqueness, originality and new ideas.

2018
WINNER

PM STRUCTURAL PARTS CATEGORY
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Ranking among the "TOP 10 companies of the Banska Bystrica region" for 2016 and 2018. The
ranking is announced annually by Hospodarsky noviny, in cooperation with UniCredit Bank and
sponsor Deloitte.

The company continues to focus on development. In 2023, approximately 10% of the total
workforce was working on the development of new technologies and products for customers
around the world. The work of the development department results in unique solutions for which
the company regularly receives international awards.

Among other things, GEVORKYAN, a.s. distinguishes itself from other manufacturing companies by
a higher proportion of employees with higher education - up to one third of employees have
achieved an engineering or master's degree, while 8 of them have achieved a doctorate degree
(PhD.)

"Fachmetall QM Context Award", which the company received during the trade fair of the
specialized
powder metallurgy in the Swiss city of Basel, where it was the winner of the competition in the
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"Quality" category. GEVORKYAN, a.s. was the only company from the EU and the first company in
the history of powder metallurgy to be awarded this prize.

"National Champion, National Public Champion" and "Ruban’d Honneur" in the European Business
Awards 2016/2017, which for ten years has focused on the most innovative companies on the old
continent by promoting their success, innovation and ethics. The main sponsor is RSM
International, the sixth largest network of independent audit, tax and advisory firms in the world.
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The activities of GEVORKYAN, a.s. and its activities are available on the website www.gevorkyan.sk,
section About us - Awards.

The company is a member of the European (EPMA) and International (APMI) Powder Metallurgy
Associations. It has a state-of-the-art laboratory and development centre.
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Laboratory - automatic hardness tester Part of the R&D department in the analysis of new projects

In recent years, the company has successfully passed several customer audits and has become a
global supplier to large multinational companies operating manufacturing plants around the world.

In 2020, the company successfully passed the IATF 16949 re-qualification audit, which is
considered the most stringent audit within the automotive industry. The standard that governs the



company is issued by TUV SUD and focuses on the development of a quality management system
with an emphasis on continuous improvement, as well as on the prevention of defects in the supply
chain.

In order to secure long-term growth in 2016, a decision was taken to accept funding from the
investor companies Jeremie Co-Investment Fund, represented by Limerock Fund Manager, and
BHS Fund Il - Private Equity, in the form of mezzanine financing with a six-year maturity. Each of
these companies acquired a 3.5% interest in GEVORKYAN, Inc. in 2016

GEVORKYAN, a.s. is the first Slovak SME company to issue public bonds on the Bratislava Stock
Exchange. Securities issued by the company do not have limited transferability.

The financial statements for the year 2023 were audited by Ernst & Young Slovakia, spol. s r.o.,
license SKAU No. 257.

In March 2019, GEVORKYAN, a.s. successfully issued bonds worth € 10 million. The bonds were
publicly traded on the Prague Stock Exchange. Their purpose was to repay an expensive mezzanine
loan and at the same time to finance the approved Euro Funds. By repaying the expensive
mezzanine loan, the company was able to save €1,000 per day in interest costs, which amounts to
€388,600 per year. The bond funds were also used to expand additive manufacturing (3D printing).

On 16.11.2021 the related company GEVORKYAN CZ, s.r.o. successfully issued bonds worth € 30
million, which are publicly traded on the Prague Stock Exchange and the funds were provided to
GEVORKYAN, a.s. in the form of a loan.

In 2014, the company employed 190 employees and generated sales of approximately EUR 17
million. Over the next 8 years, thanks mainly to the aforementioned automation, the company has
managed to streamline production and reduce jobs, especially those with lower added value. In
2023, the company achieved sales of almost 74 million euros with an even lower number of
employees: 168.

In addition, the company has completed a several-year-long land purchase necessary for the
construction and approval of its own substation, with a connection to a remote high-voltage line
and a separate connection to a high-pressure natural gas distribution system. Such energy isolation
from the rest of the industrial park brings annual savings of about 240 000 €. In addition, the
possibility of direct consumption (without intermediaries) of electricity and gas allowed the
company to conclude long-term contracts for the years 2022-2023, which eliminated the risk of
rapid price increases in connection with the energy crisis. In 2020, the company started a project
to build its own nitrogen generator. Upon successful completion of the project in the second half
of 2022, the company expects savings of €100,000 per year.



Own nitrogen generator

In 2021, a project for the construction of a new production hall was developed and approved by
the relevant authorities. The production hall was approved in November 2022. At the same time,
the unloading and subsequent installation of the Gasbarre calibration presses (220t CNC
calibration presses), which are currently installed and fully operational in the extension of the
production hall, took place during this period. Officially, the production hall extension is called the
"calibration section".

GEVORKYAN, a.s. team after successful installation — Addition to the production hall - approval 11/2022

Gasbarre calibration presses
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In the second half of 2022, the company received the largest press (300 tonnes), which took a
whole day to unload and required the roof of the production hall to be opened and a special crane
to be used to position it. The press was then successfully installed in the production hall and is now
fully operational.

SACMI 300t press unloader (left), press after successful installation (right)

As the value added in the powder metallurgy sector is relatively high, the company plans to use it
primarily to reduce the debt-to-earnings ratio (NLD/EBITDA). Two successful refinancing
operations have already been carried out in the previous years in order to reduce financing costs:

-in 2018 - BHS bond of 220 million CZK CZK 220 and a cost of 13.5% p.a., with a saving on
financing costs of more than €1,500/day (approx. €537,500/year);

-in 2019 - a mezzanine loan of €6.7 million at a cost of 10.5% p.a., saving almost €1,000/day
(approx. €388,600/year) in financing costs.

In total, savings in financial costs of approximately € 926 100/year were achieved. Due to the large
one-off fees for new issues and early repayment penalties on the original more expensive debt,
the savings only started to show up in 2020.

A few years ago, the company created its own automation and digitalisation centre to ensure long-
term competitiveness regardless of the expected rise in labour costs in Slovakia. The crisis in 2020
has kick-started new investments in the company in a very similar style and strategy to the previous
crisis in 2008. Investments were made in machinery to make production more efficient, to expand
the portfolio, to absorb new orders that came in thanks to the crisis. Powder metallurgy is an
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economically efficient production and in combination with the location of production in a
technically advanced and affordable country such as Slovakia, it ensures the long-term stability of
the company.

In 2020-2022, special investments have been directed towards robotization to avoid the impact of
a sharp increase in incapacitated (Covid-infected) operators. Robotic workstations, completely
developed by our company, replace entire teams of operators and allow continuous operation to
continue. A significant part of the investment goes into simulation software, information system,
online communication, digitalization of all processes in the company so that the company can
operate flexibly.

In 2020, the company invested in the development and production of unique respirators/masks
that have received several international awards. In addition, due to the lack of capacity in Slovakia,
the company invested in a unique laboratory that allows testing of all types of respirators, masks,
filters, drapes, etc. Currently, it has expanded the range of protective masks produced with special
applications for the forces, medical personnel, even masks as a fashion accessory. Thanks to the
professional approach, the masks have been certified and registered with the SUKL (State Institute
for Drug Control). These unique masks are also registered with the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration for the American market and with the ICR of Poland
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GEVORKYAN, a.s. has donated thousands of these unique masks to the Slovak Police Force,
hospitals, nursing homes and the underprivileged. Especially at the beginning of the pandemic,
when there was a shortage of OPP in Slovakia, GEVORKYAN, a.s. was able to provide this protection
not only to its employees and their families, but also to thousands of people in Slovakia and abroad
who desperately needed this protection.

POLICIA SR ZDRAVOTNICKY PERSONAL U NAS 1 V ZAHRANICI ARMADA JUZNA AMERIKA

A

In the near future, the company plans to expand production as well as invest in the expansion of
additive manufacturing (3D printing), which is already used in the three-shift operation in the
development department.

In May 2022, the legal form was changed to a joint stock company. In June 2022 GEVORKYAN, a.s.,
as the first foreign company, entered the START market of the Prague Stock Exchange. It received
approximately €27.5 million from investors, which is being invested to expand production and
increase capacity so that the company can serve more clients more quickly. This is the largest issue
on the START market to date.
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2. Structure of the shareholders and organs of the company

2,6%

2,6%

Ml Artur Gevorkyan BJeremie (fond) BHS Fond M Free Float
The company has the following bodies - General Assembly, Board of Directors and Supervisory
Board. The sole member of the Board of Directors and its Chairman is Artur Gevorkyan. The
members of the Supervisory Board are: Andrej Batovsky, Robert Gevorkyan and Denisa Kvasnova.

The General Meeting of the Company was held on 30.12.2022 at the registered office of the
Company at 504 Tovarenska Street in Vlkanova. All information and documents related to the
General Meeting are available on the Company's website in the Important Links - For Investors
section.

The company's strategy is determined and implemented by the company's majority shareholder
Artur Gevorkyan, an aerospace engineer who has worked on the development of composite
materials for military aviation.

He is the owner of several patents and the holder of the know-how on which the company's
development is based. His years of hard work to achieve his goal and his unusual entrepreneurial
story have been rewarded

in the finals of the "Entrepreneur of the Year" competitions 2011, 2012 and 2019.

GEVORKYAN, a.s. is also a related party of GPM Tools, s.r.o. (Gevorkyan Powder Metallurgy Tools),
which specializes in the production of moulds for powder metallurgy and is the only toolmaker in
Central Europe in this field at all

a1 EY
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3. Organisational structure and employment

GEVORKYAN
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Powder Metallurgy Plant
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At the end of 2023, the company employed a total of 168 employees, 11% of whom worked in the
development department. It provides attractive and stable jobs for skilled workers with relevant education.
The company has a multinational team. The key managers have experience in different industries.

Our main objective in the field of human resources management is the development and stabilisation of
human capital. Through employee development and career growth opportunities, we increase employee
motivation. Applying the principle of fair remuneration, preventing and avoiding discrimination is extremely
important to us.

As of December 31, 2023, the company had 168 employees, of which 104 were women and 64 were men.
Their average age was 36 years.

The company guarantees every employee the rights arising from the employment relationship without any
restrictions, in accordance with legal standards, including in the area of personal data protection.
GEVORKYAN, a.s. creates equal conditions for self-realization of different groups of employees also in terms
of gender and age, taking into account education, qualification and work experience.

The exceptionally broad spectrum of the company's social programme covers the real needs of employees,
from material assistance during long-term sick leave, maternity leave, to refinancing of accommodation
costs, transport, contributions for recovery procedures, stays, etc.

In 2023, a special programme continued to support young and talented employees, for whom the company
reimburses university studies, education and various professional training and courses (foreign language
training), and the provision of long-term loans (up to 30 years) for the purchase of an apartment, house or
the overhaul of an existing property.
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Great emphasis is placed on continuous training of employees. All engineers and designers attend
international trade fairs, and in addition they attend annual training courses and technical training in
powder metallurgy in various countries around the world. Experts from supplier companies are also invited
to regularly organised in-house training sessions to present new developments in materials, production
technology and machinery.

Regular meetings with interesting personalities from the business environment, such as Jan Kosturiak
(INOVATO) or Ivo Toman, are an integral part of the company's operation. At the same time, the company's
original principles are presented at trainings, conferences, meetings, seminars and international scientific
conferences (e.g. Ministry of Foreign Affairs, IPA Slovakia, Happy Company, Management Live, ZMPS,
TUZVO, etc.).

The company cooperates with the Slovak Chamber of Commerce and Industry (SOPK) and the Austrian-
Slovak Chamber of Commerce (DSIHK - Deutsch Slowakische Industrie-und Handelskammer) especially in
organizing conferences and excursions focused on the company's technologies, whose guests are both
foreign and Slovak entrepreneurs. Of course, the cooperation with the Technical University in Zvolen,
University of Zilina and Matej Bel University is a matter of course, with which GEVORKYAN, a.s. plans to
expand from excursions and lectures of Slovak and foreign students to supervising the final theses of
students of the last years, who will solve real problems of production and development.

Professional training and, above all, the practical application of acquired knowledge is crucial in society. The
promotion of dual training is a natural part of the company's policy. On the basis of cooperation with the
Technical University in Zvolen, students go through all departments, from development to production,
where they verify their knowledge in practice.

S o

Members of the INOVATO association at a workshop and a tour of the company's production hall
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The company was awarded the Inspirational Project label in the Via Bona Slovakia 2014 competition,
category "Great Employer".

In 2016 it was awarded as "Healthy Company of the Year" by the health insurance company
for its significant contribution to the health care of its employees, and 2018 marked its 4th place in the
Manufacturing Companies category in the next edition of this competition.
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GEVORKYAN, s.r0. sttt
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InSpirativny sSkvely zamestnavatel

. a nazakiade hodnotenia komisie
projekt Jej udefuje cznacenie

Inspirativny projekt.

dravotnoy poistovi

Gevorkyan s.r.o.

Lenka Surotchak

The company also provides its employees with opportunities for leisure activities that are important in
building a positive working environment and team, e.g. sports days
for employees and their families, Christmas cabbage soup, traditional Hron River rafting, visits to shelters,
orphanages and many others.

Employees of the company and traditional Hron River
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4. Activities, visions and plans of GEVORKYAN, a.s.

GEVORKYAN, a.s. has been operating on the market for 27 years and has been successfully meeting
the expectations of its customers using its long experience in the field. The company is the owner
of the know-how. The development department employs 18 engineers who develop about 150
new products per year. It cooperates with the Slovak Academy of Sciences. It works on the
development of new materials with research institutes in Sweden and Canada. Thanks to strong
development, the company is expanding its customer portfolio by about 10 new customers per
year.

It is a development supplier for most of its customers. The vast majority of products are developed
in-house. It is the sole supplier for almost 100% of its customers. It is regularly approached by
customers interested in developing products that are not available on the market. In this way, it
has achieved world uniqueness in products that no one else in the world has yet produced by
powder metallurgy.

18



Due to the uniqueness of the production processes and products offered, the company has
established strong business contacts both on the material supply and sales side.
Currently the company provides products to its customers in more than 30 countries around the
world from Brazil, Mexico, USA, all over Europe to Israel, China and India.
The company's products can be found in a variety of automobiles from Dacia to Mercedes, as well
as in exclusive brands such as Porsche, Bentley; in branded cosmetics such as Versace, Hugo Boss;
in hand tools for the general public and professionals such as Black & Decker, Bosch and Dewalt;
in agricultural equipment such as John Deere, Deutz, Komatsu; in the oil and medical industry. The
expansion into new markets and the significant diversification of production are evidenced by the
contracts recently concluded with companies from various sectors

In 2019, a separate 3D printing department was created. A new industry called Additive
Manufacturing (AM), which is part of powder metallurgy, is currently in the spotlight. GEVORKYAN,
Inc. believes that the time of intensive use of Additive Manufacturing (AM) technology is yet to
come and will be used not only in the aerospace industry, medicine, but also in robotics. The
company plans to develop this technology gradually. Currently GEVORKYAN, Inc. uses this
technology mainly for the production of spare parts for very expensive machines, in order to
eliminate the long waiting time for spare parts from the production of the machine, which normally
takes several weeks.

In 2020, the company launched a new high-speed quenching line for mass production, which is
specific in that it can quench special powder metallurgy composite materials. It is also unique that
GEVORKYAN, a.s. cooperated on the development and production together with a German

19



manufacturer. The result of the cooperation is a unique line for high-temperature hardening (up
to 1050 °C) in the whole territory of the Czech Republic and Slovakia.

In 2022, the implementation of 27 robotic workstations in production was successfully completed.
All of them are universal workstations that the company can move from machine to machine, even
from one department to another, if necessary, which, in addition to significant savings in labor
costs, also allows for greater flexibility in production.

Over the past period, the company has successfully passed customer audits from new automotive
customers based in Europe and the USA, as well as from hand tool manufacturers in Japan and
Germany. Cooperation with the Oil & Gas segment as well as with companies producing weapons
and ammunition has been significantly expanded. This and much more helps to plan the company's
strategy for the coming years and brings several years of concrete projects in the short term.
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5. Strategy of GEVORKYAN, a. s.

The company's strategy is based on ensuring the long-term growth and development of the
company. It is formed where one technology is ending and another is not yet beginning - at the
interface of different technologies. The company's uniqueness lies in the combination of powder
metallurgy (PM), injection molding of metal composites MIM, high-temperature isostatic pressing
HIP and additive manufacturing of 3D prints AM. These 4 technologies under one roof make
GEVORKYAN, Inc. a European unique.

The company's products are not strictly linked to one industry sector. Parts are supplied to the
automotive, hand tools, locks and protection systems, cosmetic, medical, agricultural and
petroleum industries.

It is a flexible company that does not sell products, but solutions for customers.
50% of the company's products have never before been produced by powder metallurgy
technology anywhere in the world.

The company passed a rigorous certification process in 2020 and is officially certified as a
manufacturer of medical devices and HSE according to ISO 45001:2018.

The total volume of priced projects for 2023 was nearly 94 million€ (annual revenue per project).
Of this, orders from customers were confirmed and contracts were started at the same time,
amounting to €3.45m, or 3.69%

YEAR 2023 annual turnover in €
TOTAL 93612923 €
Retrieved from 3450515 € 3,69%
We communicate 60 754 626 € 65,41%
Unsuccessful 28 756 254 € 30,96%

Company's revenue forecast for 2023

In early 2023, the company recorded a higher order volume, which was mainly due to an increase
in demand for products manufactured using PM technology. The increased demand is primarily
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due to customers' desire for cost savings and thus their focus on new technologies, which allow
them to reduce costs as is the case with PM technology. The increase in orders due to a similar
reason was experienced by the company in connection with the crisis in 2008-2009. As a
consequence of this trend, the company expects an increase in revenue compared to 2022

Moreover, during this crisis a new global trend has emerged - the European industry is trying to
cut itself off from Asian suppliers, which opens the door to new business opportunities for
GEVORKYAN, a.s. within the European and American market.

6. Impact of the company's activities on the environment

Health and safety at work, together with the environment, are among society's most important
values. Respect for the environment and the will to continue this development is demonstrated by
the fact that the company employs highly qualified professionals responsible for health, safety at
work and the environment. More than 90% of the company's waste is recycled or reused, reducing
the negative impact on the environment.

The company's experts are constantly working to make the use of natural resources more efficient.
Heat from production processes is also used to heat the company's premises in winter. Another
project for the coming year is the installation of heat recuperators to use waste heat from the
compressor station to heat the domestic water and office space

The company is certified for the environmental management system according to STN EN ISO
14001:2016. In 2020 the company successfully passed the recertification audit, the next one is
scheduled for 2023.

The Company does not provide other non-financial information on the development, actions,
position and impact of the entity's activities on environmental, social and employment issues,
information on respect for human rights and information on the fight against corruption and
bribery as it does not meet the requirement on the number of employees specified in section 20(9)
of the Accounting Act.
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7. Economic indicators and financial situation

Business name of the company GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Factory 504

Headquarters Vikanové 976 31
Day of registration in the commercial register 20.1.1997
Legal form Joint stock
Subject of activity Activities in the field of powder metallurgy
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8. Risks to the company's future development

To date, there are no significant risks that could materially jeopardise the Company's operations.

Threats are managed by risk analysis. One of the most effective tools is FMEA (Failure Mode and
Effects Analysis) to uncover risks. In addition, the company has a regular risk analysis of each
process, which is broken down in process cards, along with risk assessment, corrective actions
and analysis of the effectiveness of corrective actions.

The financing of the operation was spread over 2 main financing banks. Each of them financed its
own group of customers/projects.

In order to increase the elimination of the risk of a shortfall in the supply of basic materials for
production, a programme of diversification of suppliers of metal powders was implemented.

Backup power supplies were also installed for the CNC machine control units.

To reduce the risk of non-payment of invoices by customers, GEVORKYAN, a.s. extended its
cooperation with the Atradius insurance company to the insurance of receivables and analysis of
business partners.

Contracts for product liability insurance have also been extended.

There have been no events of particular significance subsequent to the end of the 2023 financial
year that require disclosure in the annual report.

9. Governance Statement

The Code of Corporate Governance is part of the Code of Ethics, the Quality Policy as well as the
Quality Manual. The Code of Ethics and the Quality Policy are publicly available for viewing on the
Company's website.

All information on management methods is contained in the Quality Manual, which is an important
internal document of GEVORKYAN, a.s. A description of the main internal control and risk
management systems in relation to the financial statements is presented in section 8 of this Annual
Report.

The General Assembly is the supreme body of GEVORKYAN, a.s. It is held at least once a year and
is convened by the company's Board of Directors. The Board of Directors of the Company is
composed of one member, namely the Chairman of the Board of Directors, who is Artur
Gevorkyan. The General Meeting of Shareholders at the Ordinary Meeting approves the financial
statements, profit distribution, decides on the issue of shares or share buy-back and approves the
auditor or an extraordinary meeting may be approved.
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Another body of the company is the Supervisory Board, which is composed of the Chairman and
two other members. This body is elected and appointed by the general meeting of shareholders.
It elects the company's board of directors, supervises the company's operations and its
management, checks the annual accounts and business results.

10.Important events and information

A description of significant events that have occurred and their impact on the financial statements
and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties

In February 2022, a military conflict broke out in Ukraine, which is still ongoing at the time of the
preparation of these financial statements. In connection with this, there have been, among other
things, impacts on business in Ukraine and Russia due to the war and economic sanctions, increases
in market prices for raw materials, fuels and energy, and increased volatility in currency exchange
rates. Although the quantification of the potential impact on the Company cannot be estimated
with reasonable reliability at this time, the Company has analyzed the potential impact of changing
micro and macroeconomic conditions on the Company's performance, financial position and
operations and has not identified any uncertainty in relation to the Company's continued
operations

In addition, the company has seen an increase in demand from companies operating in the EU and
US defence industries.

The complete financial report will be available on the website www.gevorkyan.sk and in printed
form at the registered office of GEVORKYAN, a.s. at Tovarenska street no. 504, 976 31 Vlkanova.

The Company does not include in the annual report, in accordance with point 13, §20 of Act No.
431/2002 Coll. on Accounting, non-financial information on the development, actions, position and
impact of the entity's activities on the environmental, social and employment spheres, information
on the observance of human rights and on the fight against corruption and bribery, as the average
number of employees of the Company for the accounting period did not exceed 500 employees.

Information on the composition of the company's bodies and their committees

The Supervisory Board of GEVORKYAN Inc. acted as the Audit Committee during the year. During
the year 2023, it was composed of Ing. Andrej Batovsky (Chairman of the Committee), Robert
Gevorkyan (member) and Denisa Kvasova (member). During the year, the Supervisory Board was
presented with reports on the preparation of the financial statements, the audit process and the
internal control system. Meetings were also held with all members of the Supervisory Board during
the year. The Chairman of the Management Board of GEVORKYAN a.s. is: Dipl. Ing. Artur
Gevorkyan. The shareholders of Gevorkyan are. Artur Gevorkyan (77 % shareholding), JEREMIE Co-
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Investment Fund s.r.o. (2.6 %) and BHS Fund Il - Private Equity (2.6 %), other shareholders (free
float shares) 17.8 %

Description of the main internal control and risk management systems in relation to the financial
statements

The financial statements of GEVORKYAN, a.s. for the year 2023 have been prepared in accordance
with Act No. 431/2002 Coll. on Accounting, as amended, assuming the going concern basis and
have been prepared as regular financial statements.

The Company has also prepared interim financial statements as at 31.03.2023, 30.06.2023 and
30.09.2023 during the year 2023.

The internal control system is carried out in accordance with the basic internal directive and other
internal directives which are subordinate to the basic accounting directive and in accordance with
the applicable accounting legislation. These directives govern the various areas and methods of
accounting for: tangible fixed assets, intangible fixed assets, financial assets, inventories,
receivables, payables, provisions, accruals, equity, foreign currency transactions, revenue, finance
leases, income tax, subsidies and corrections of prior period errors. These guidelines have been
submitted to the audit firm and are also available to all members of the Audit Committee. Mr. Artur
Gevorkyan is responsible for the accuracy of the financial statements.

The interim accounts are checked on a monthly basis, by taking stock of the balances of the
individual accounts. Other control processes were carried out in accordance with the internal
accounting directive. In addition to these regular controls, the company is audited annually by Ernst
& Young Slovakia, spol. s r.o. GEVORKYAN, a.s. takes care to educate its employees by regular
external training in the areas of accounting, reporting, taxes and accounting laws. We also regularly
subscribe to the latest literature with changes in legislation.

Information on the activities of the General Assembly for the year 2023
During 2023, one meeting of the General Assembly of GEVORKYAN, Inc. was held

On 23.6.2023, a meeting of the General Assembly was held, the subject of which was the approval
of the written report of the Board of Directors of the company, the decision on the amendment of
the Articles of Association of the company,

To consider and approve the Company's 2022 annual separate financial statements and 2022
annual report, to consider and approve the distribution of the Company's 2022 profits and to
consider and approve the Company's auditor for 2023.

The General Meeting decided that the auditing services for the year 2023 will be performed by
Ernst & Young Slovakia, spol. s r.o.
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The General Meeting of Shareholders, on the proposal of the Company's Board of Directors, at its
Ordinary Session, approved the distribution of the profit after tax for the year 2022 in the amount
of EUR 3 535 066 as follows:

e an allocation to the legal reserve of EUR 353 506,60,

e transfer to retained earnings of previous years in the amount of EUR 3 181 559,40.

Information on the development, conduct, position and impact of the entity's activities on
environmental, social and employment issues, information on respect for human rights and on the
fight against corruption and bribery

The Company does not include in the annual report, in accordance with point 13, §20 of Act No.
431/2002 Coll. on Accounting, non-financial information on the development, actions, position and
impact of the entity's activities on the environmental, social and employment spheres, information
on the observance of human rights and on the fight against corruption and bribery, as the average
number of employees of the Company for the accounting period did not exceed 500 employees.

Other additional data
Securities issued by the Company are not restricted as to transferability.

The company does not have a qualified participation in the share capital according to a special
regulation.

The voting rights attached to the Company's shares are not restricted. Holders of securities issued
by the Company do not have special control rights.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company is not aware of any agreements among the holders of
securities issued by it that may result in restrictions on the transferability of securities and
restrictions on voting rights.

The Company has not entered into any agreements that become effective, are modified or
terminated as a result of a change in control in connection with the Takeover Offer.

The Company has not entered into any agreements with directors or employees to compensate
them if their office or employment is terminated by resignation, resignation by the employee,
dismissal, termination by the employer without cause or termination of office or employment as a
result of a takeover bid.
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11. Attachments (Certificates of the company and sample articles about
the company in the media in Slovakia and the Czech Repubilic)
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TUV SUD Management Service GmbH
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GEVORKYAN, s.r.o.
Tovarenska 504
976 31 Vlkanova
Slovenska republika

zaviedla a pouziva
systém manazérstva kvality v oblasti

Vyroba a predaj vyrobkov praskovej metalurgie.
Tepelné spracovanie kovov.

Auditom, zakazka ¢&islo 707054083
bolo preukazané,
Ze sl splnené poZiadavky normy

; I1ISO 9001:2015.

Certifikat je platny od 2020-09-29 do 2023-09-28.
Registraéné cislo certifikatu: 12 100 52698 TMS.
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Reg. No. 153/R-006

Slovakia

CERTIFIKAT

TOV sUD Slovakia s.r.o.

Certifikacny organ systémov manazérstva

akreditovany SNAS
osvedcenie o akreditacii &. R-006

potvrdzuje, Ze organizacia

GEVORKYAN, s.r.o.
Zvolenska cesta 14
® SK - 974 03 Banska Bystrica

I€0: 36 017 205

zaviedla a pouziva
systém environmentalneho manazérstva v oblasti

Vyvoj, vyroba a predaj vyrobkov praskovej metalurgie.
Tepelné spracovanie kovov.

Auditom, sprava ¢. 0181/20/19/E/AS/R2

bolo preukazané, Ze su splnené
poziadavky normy

STN EN ISO 14001:2016

Certifikat je platny od 2019-06-13 do 2022-06-12
Registracné Cislo certifikatu E 0181-3

Bratislava, 2019-06-13

/

TUV SUD Slovakia s.r.o.
Certifikacny organ systémov manazérstva

&len skupiny TUV SUD
Jasikova 6, 821 03 Bratislava
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Certifikdt

Tento certifikat bol udeleny

GEVORKYAN, s.r.o.
Tovarenska 504, 976 31 Vikanova, Slovakia

ako osveddenie o managemente systému BOZP v organizécii v sulade s

ISO 45001:2018

Oblast Einnosti, na ktoré sa tento certifikat vztahuje, je definovany nizsie

Vyvoj, vyroba a predaj vyrobkov praskovej metalurgie. Tepelné
spracovanie kovov.

Cislo certifikatu: Datum vystavenia:{pSvodného} Déatum vystavenia:
205770/B/0001/UK/Sk 10 novermber 2020 10 november 2020
Vydanle €.: Platnost’ do:
1 9 november 2023

Vydany: d\/\\ Za certifikalny orgén
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MANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS

Ak =2 vyskytni Akékalvek pochybnost! o provost] tohto sertifikaty, nevihajte sa, prosf, spajit s Skupiny n3 adrese Inf o1
URS fe &onom spalotnosti Reqlztrar of Standerds (Haldings) Limited, Washington House, 3 Durley Rosd, Boumemauth, BH2 53, Uk
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CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION

This certifies that:

GEVORKYAN S. R. O.

Tovarenska 504

Vikanova Banskobystricky Kraj, SK 97631

is registered with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration for FY 2021 pursuant to Title 21, 807 et seq. of the
United States Code of Federal Regulations:

Establishment Registration: 3017412524

Device Classification Name: FACE MASK (EXCEPT N95 RESPIRATOR) FOR GENERAL
PUBLIC/HEALTHCARE PERSONNEL PER IE GUIDANCE

Product Code: QKR

Official Correspondent Registrar Corp

and U.S. Agent: 144 Research Drive, Hampton, Virginia, 23666, USA

Telephone: +1-757-224-0177 » Fax: +1-757-224-0179

Registrar Corp will confirm that such registration remains effective upon request and presentation of this
certificate until the end of the year stated above, unless said registration is terminated after issuance of this
certificate. Registrar Corp makes no other representations or warranties, nor does this certificate make any
represeniations or warranties to any person or entity other than the named certificate holder, for whose sole
benefit it is issued. This cervificate does not denote endorsement or approval of the certificate-holder’s device or
establishment by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. Registrar Corp assumes no liability to any person or
entity in connection with the foregoing.

Pursuant to 21 CFR 807.39, "Registration of a device establishment or assignment of a registration number
does not in any way denote approval of the establishment ov its products. Any representation that creates an
impression of offictal approval because of registration or possession of a regisiration number is misleading and
constitutes misbranding."

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration does not issue a certificate of registration, nor does the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration recognize a ceriificare of registration. Registrar Corp is not affiliated with the U.S. Food
and Drug Administration,

Registrar Cor‘p':

144 Research Drive, Hampton, Virginia, 23666, USA xechitive Director
Telephone: +1-757-224-0177 ¢ Fax: +1-757-224-0179 Registrar Corp
info@registrarcorp.com ® www.registrarcorp.com Dated:

S0 A Pegrsteyr Com
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T4 I VERIFICATION OF CONFORMITY

||
AN 4
"
S/N: 001065
No.: ICR Polska/VC/C201001/A1
replaces ICR Polska/VC/C201001
Name and address of GEVORKYAN, s.r.o.
Applicant Tovarenska 504, 976 31 Vlkanova, Slovakia
Name and address of GEVORKYAN, s.r.o.
manufacturer: Tovarenska 504, 976 31 Vlkanova, Slovakia
Product name: Reusable mask /
Maska medyczna wielokrotnego uzytku z wymiennymi wktadami filtrujgcymi
Product types: SMART KOMFORT, INDUSTRY, ULTRA

Product trademark: C@DGE VOR KYAN ®

This document confirms that the product sample meets the requirements of the following standards:

o Related with Directive 93/42/EEC:

EN 14683:2019+AC:2019 (medical mask type Il) - for mask with white filters
- for mask with blue filters

The assessment process has been carried out in accordance with individual rules and conditions agreed with the
applicant. Evaluation has been carried out in accordance with:

Test reports: Tests conducted by:

- 84/2020 - VUTCH-CHEMITEST spol. s r.o. - for mask with white filters
- 005/2020 - STU Bratislava, FCHPT

- B24046lI - HygCen Austria GmbH - for mask with blue filters
Issue date: 18.02.2021

Expiration date: 11.10.2025

Remarks

This Verification of conformity refers to the above mentioned product and its conformity in regards of above mentioned standard(s) was proven on
test sample.

This Verification of conformity was issued on voluntary basis and does not imply meeting all essential requirements, assessment of the series-
production or any other restricted Notified Bodies conformity assessment procedure appropriate for the product.

marking remarks:

mark is not sanctioned by the following verification of conformity

mark given here as reference, can be only use by the manufacturer after
applying all essential requirements from relevant directives

document status can be checked: https://certicrpolska.com/

Director. Rafat Kalinowski
Warsaw, 18.02.2021

ICR Polska Co. Ltd.
www.icrpolska.com
icrpolska@icrqa.com Edition: 4.1.1.C of 18.01.2021
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Specialny projekt 5

Rastiemea modermzu;eme

Aj vdaka tomu, ze hoci sme kazdy iny, spolu sme silnejsi

Slovenska firma GEVORKYAN je uni-

kat. Patrf do svetove] extratriedy. Pri-

tom pred 25 rokml vznikia na Sloven-
sku z ni¢oho. Prvé stroje sl Je) majitel
Artur Gevorkyan postavll viastno-

cov, ktoré naslel v zbernlach Srotu.
Dnes Jeho fabrika zamestnava vyse

Opat sa rozsiruje, nakupuje Spickove

stroje. Investuje do rozvoja a inovacll - T R REp poeca

a tonevidanych 15 miliénov eur.

V tejto nesste| dobe?” pytaii) sa mnch. , Prave pretol” rea- 4
gujesiovensky podrikatel s ammnskymi koranmi Kio hopo- &
2, netidule s3. Artur Gevorkyan nie je baany majitef 2 saf 2
podniu. Jeho netradine metcdy riadentz 3 napady muzs-
¥zl nielen mncho profesijTych ocenent, Ji 3| SINé renome
v brana2{. Airma, ktond vyStudovany letecky Indinler, $p2-
salista na matenaly a dr2itef niskafiych patantov vybudo-
val v 00 Stovenska, je eurdpskym iorom v oblast] prasko-
v metaiurpe : extrémne zZiafte S)0EStKy najma pre odberatafov v Ne-
0 ¢olde? Zjadnodusene povedand o Isovania kovovych &
SUCIastok 20 3pacizinych praskovych zmest pr vysokych tia- =
Koch. M2tida je nsobnz rjchielSts 3 lacneisia ko kizsicee 3
frézovanis 2s0struenis. NavySe Inak 20 5ovnim s mnc- 3

he stiasticy vyrobit 2t neda)l

Tajomstvo ?
GEVORKYAN patri K najinovativnelsim hracom v odvetw.

Navyse je vyvojovym dodivatalom pra vatsinu svojlch 23- &
¥azrikov. Tito poziciz nim garantuje dnetna traby 70 sé- 3
riavyCh vTobkov, Ktoré Sme vyvinull pred rokmy, 3 zaoven 3
mame istotu v oabyte na daiSich 732 10 rokov Z projektoy, *

Na Vyvoil Kiorych prangeme dnes,” vysvetige majtel.

GEVORKYAN":

Prrwveder Mreabagy Ploce

Treba sa razvijat, Investovat, rast... Koenatovz!a( 2K nie

Vysioto. Spobans(odlm&nrwnsuatannsaom

+ llonoy ewr. Zaroven 1510 0 Najvalshs emisiu roku 2022 na
3 trhu START prazske) borzy! 3
3 Nepochybne to bol naieps! tah,” hodnatf majitef pat- 3
4 samozreime, bez kni2a. Tradida chatkarov spajaia, 2vykli s2
* prifichstretavat susedia, Znam, fodiy. Necuoa. 28 duch pa-
* matnika predl do anesnych das.

100-tisic ews. A oni takych isov teraz kupujd osem. Nikto-
réznichvyjdo 3 na 1,5 miona SO vyscke Ko trojpascic- §
3 vnitoend potreby, viedy tam zajdem, 2 nagfepsie s man-
4 2aikou” Pokira 2 sila pokraovat, 2 to najma viady, ked's3
3 7da 20 53 vam znitflsvet, SO 0NeSts. Rovnako ako symbay.
+ JZ Armenska mame taki Skdsenost: mesto 53 0a Zniat, kas-
mecku 3 USA. Pradpokiaddme, 22 v tychto krajndch bude
+ %al Cas, ked ho niskto Znova postavil”
VEN uSatria ove tretiny nakizdov 73 energe 3 nasa proou- 3
tla 52 prinajmensom 20voj- a2 strojrasobl,” objashule Ge- 3
4 vorkyan.

: Padnes? Zodvihneme ta

+ Spickovestroje 2 tachnoioge veak nie sl veetko, Hnevama,
2k niekto tvrdl, 28 53 11 03, Iebo Som SIkavTTy. V20y opaky- &

ne. .Banky nm dvery dat nechcel, vr3f do Jam Investovat
nebud(” Nard2a tym na fakt. 2e z2Kladova jama pre 0sz-
mmmovﬁkmnwnemmcmvmemmcam

dova bytovia, vo vyrobne) hale kvoil nim musell otvorit
strechis 3 voiat Speciaine 2eriavy.
Nové lisy maji mnoho benefitov. Budd robit vela &

atien ekonomik namand. Nmodemeféle lisy nam zaro-

Jem: Nikdy by som ri¢ nedokzzal sam. Nasl zamestrancisd to
omam,” pribli2uje flozofiu Gevorkyan.

Stenach firmy. Vot | vorkw AKo kedysi vo fabrikach legen
darneho Tomasa Batu. Tento mal nad NaveTyen vstupom.

e, 20raVOtd S OSHIVDST, dopravL, POME I v ta2kych

39

Situs3ciach. V2o, ked st nedokaly pomoact sami. Ked padro,
! pomoseim wstat

Pochadzam z chiudodne] rodiny, ovek nesmia zzbodat
mmpena.mrezm.ueummmanymmcxwm

3 Navysev2oy som mal poct, akoby mi pomihala nejaka vys-
: 3 Slashia” uvadue Gevorkyan
: nantovnazemegull Armz vo Vikanove pri Bansike Bystrid 3

rucne -z vyhodenych zarladenl a diel- : Prete10enastyn zmeny e anito tasto nestatl.
i Rekord naburze

: V|juresafirma GEVORKYAN stala prvou siovenskou spaiot- 5

200 fudf a hned by zobral dalSich sto, : 1°S°u. o verez pontida akcienaburzev Prane. Triy

Premy&f preto diho na tym, 3o spofit tieto hodnaty do

: nejakehosymbolu. Rozhodnutia v hom Zrelo diha, no napo-

¢ kon boko jasné ako sinko: tr2ACny arménsky kzmenny reler
s sioizom - chatar!

1 Symbol neznicitelnosti, vytrvalosti
3 Dol nizko, nalzda na nich mizemd a majitela vsetd vystr- : a tolerancie

3 ha, aby diho pianavany krok cdio2il. Xady. 2K nie teraz? §
* JaZeniachramu, kisstora, mests, ale zvykol pripominat 3 do-
+ letéucsiost]. Napeikdad narodenie £ Smrt panoviia alebo
* Vitamid bitkoy. Reflef bol populamy od starobysych £12s 2 ne-
3 sinisel B3 s krestanstvorn. Kustom bohato zoobeneho ka-
3 MaTeno monoitty, Ktory Je vedny 2 neznititely, s3 u2 22

Kedysi mal chatkar roane funkcie Oznadovalsanim hrod, za-

gavnyth Cias v Armensku InSpiravall 3 253 & mastmovia,

.Nie 5om prafinane Nbory. NEvIET 3 ani Spravne pre-
2eMnat, necnodim 0o kostola,” tvrdl Gavorkyan. Kad ciim

tolvypaie, ale Chatkar vatsinou len zvalit ra zeem. A vady pel-

Dodnes s2 v krajine pod vyse 4 000 Metrov vysokou vy-
hasnitousopkou Aragac zachovall tisice chackaray rizmych

4 velkost, typov | vyznamu. Jedinetn umenie vyroby relle-
3 Tov z kameNa 53 stakle vysoko cti. V roku 2010 ho dokoncg
+ UNESCO zapisalo na zoznam nehmotneno kukmeho de-

aitstva ludstve.
Nechcam povySovat j2dno nabodenstvo rad ing. Chatkar

3 VATMEnsKL ctill vSeto - 2ko symbol pevnost] s naznictehos-

majcennase, 3 1, )00 e vytesany do skaly. Osacenim tohto pamatrika by
Id2veak eftedale) Sprivamesa akorodina, bojujemezko

* armada” Toje jeden z mnchych Sloganoy, ktore nicete na
Madzl z2kaznikov patnia popredng automabliy, strojér- =

ska, letecks ¢ a¥arska frmy, Je napeikiad 3 najnmas &

IVOFCOVE3 luxusnEl mody a kozmetiky. Pre mnchasvetoznd-

TMe 2 NZ0N2rodng SpoIaNast] S0 jedingm vyTobcom kompo- 3

SOM rad vyjaare podakovanie Slovakom. Za to, 2e nielennas

i Arminov, Je 3 dalsich cudzincov tak vrdone prijsling svojom
+ U2amia 22n2m Covoll N2 Krasnom Siovensku vytvorte st ru-
* hy domow” povedal pri ochzient pamatnia Gevorkyan.

Lo, KEor to potrebuld, prato frma prispleva na byve-

&
qmrmuzemcmuzayw.mummg
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Artur Gevorkyan: Diky IPO jsme zefektivnili vyrobu
a fungujeme vice strategicky, nas byznys je
vyjimecné dlouhodoby a zajistény

Slovenska spolecnost Gevorkyan, lidr ve vyrobé kovovych
soucastek procesem praskové metalurgie, loni uspésné vstoupila
na trh START prazskeé burzy a povedlo se ji navysit Cisty zisk o
64,9 %. Jak firmé pomohly penize ziskané v ramci IPO? A proc
jsou akcie spolecnosti pro investory nadale zajimavé? Nejen
o tom jsme hovorili s Arturem Gevorkyanem, zakladatelem
a predsedou predstavenstva firmy.

V roce 2022 jste vstoupili na trh START prazskeé burzy, kde jste v ramci IPO ziskali
pres 727 milionu korun. Vyuzili jste jiz véechny penize z upisu?

Stale je to v procesu. Dodaci Ihita strojd & vyrobnich linek je v nékterych pfipadech i delii nez
rok. Jeitd cekdme na nékteré stroje. Kvdli dlouhym dodacim lhdtdm jsme &ast z nich objednali
jesté pred IPO. JiZ jsme zle pristavéli jednu vyrobni halu @ na jare zadiname podle schvalenych
projektd stavét druhou velkou halu. SnaZime se o efektivnéjsi tok, coz vyzZaduje vice prostoru.

Uspésny vstup na trh START mate za sebou. Jak zpétné hodnotite cely proces?
Udélal byste to znovu?

Urdité ano. Je to zplsob, jak ziskat penize v takovém objemu, v jakém jsou potieba, a navic
jednorazové. Nase vyroba je komplikovang, linky na sebe navazuji. V minulosti jsme byli nuceni
stroje kupovat a uvadét do provozu postupné, diky IPO mdZeme nakoupit vie podle potieby
tak, abychom mohli nastavit efektivné tok materialu. Je to podobnég, jako kdybyste si mohli
vybrat karty, ze kterymi budete hrat.
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Zistenie HN: Slovenska firma expanduje do USA aj
Mexika. Potiahol ju americky obranny priemysel

* Rozsirit sa chce na dva trhy v Severnej Amerike.

* Dévodom je rastuci pocet zakaznikov z oblasti aj upeviiovanie vztahov s tamojsim

obrannym priemyslom.

e Ten vyZaduje, aby bol jeho dodavatel nablizku

Efekt motylich kridel dokaze ¢asto priniest neuveritelné osudy. Jednym z nich je rozhodne
aj pribeh Artura Gevorkyana, arménskeho podnikatela pésobiaceho vo Vlkanovej pri Sliaci.
Svojho &asu servisoval vrtulniky hasiace Cernobyl, neskér sa rozhodol po vzore otca
venovat praskove] metalurgii. To sa viak vo vojnou zmietanej domovine o Nahorny
Karabach nedalo, a tak emigroval na Ukrajinu, kde mu zas nevyhovovalo podnikatelské

prostredie.

Tak sa zacal pisat jeho slovensky pribeh, ktory odstartoval uz pred 27 rokmi s jasnym ciefom
— vyrabat komponenty na mieru inovativnym spdsobom. Aj preto vedenie fabriky do
vyroby neustéle investovalo, prostriedky na expanziu sa rozhodlo zhanat aj na burze.

Podla informacii HN sa vyrobca najnoviie rozhodol zamierit za velk( mlaku. Konkrétne do

USA a Mexika, kde ma v plane postavit dve nové vyrobné prevadzky.

»Zakaznikov z tychto regionov méame uz dlhé roky. Chceme byt lokdlnym dodavatelom,”
potvrdil pre HN 3éf fabriky Artur Gevorkyan s tym, Ze dévodom expanzie je narast
zékaznikov z obranného priemyslu, ktory si, pochopitelne, pritomnost svojich dodavatelov

vyZaduje.
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Inzerce

Za dnesni uspéch mize 5000 let stara technologie

S trochou nadsazky by se
Artur Gevorkyan dal pripo-
dobnit k elitnimu séfkucha-
ri, na jehoz recepturu spo-
Iéha byznys ze viech koutd
svéta. Ze smési prasku do-
kaze vytvorit béhem hodiny
tisice unikatnich, a presto na
vlas stejnych soucastek. Ty
pak putuji ke znamym znac-
kam jako jsou BMW, Bosch,
Mountfield, Versace, Lacoste
a mnoho dalsich, aby mohly
byt pouzity do popularnich
vyrobki.
Artur Gevorkyan vyrabi tyto soutastky pomoct
metody pratkove metalurgle. Ve své podstaté se
J2dna o velice starou technologl, kterou lidstvo
na Ji2 vice ne2 5000 let. Naprikiad staroved Egyp-
tan2 JI vyuzivall pti vyrobe Sperkil, ktere dodnes
zdobl Tutanchamonowu hrobku. Tato staroveka

technologle véak musela byt Inovativneé moder-
nizovana, aby mohla byt prenesena do serlove

70

60

gzy tomu mohla vznlknout spolecnost =
GEVORKYAN, ktera se stala lidrem v oblast! pras- i
kove metalurgle v ramd Eviopy. Zaroven patfi =
k nejinovativnefsim spolecnostem v tomto odvat- =
vicelosvetove, Je denem evropske a mezinarodnd
asodace pro praskovou metalurgll a disponuje
$pickove vybavenou laboratofi a R&D vyvojovym
strediskem. V poslednich letech aspasne prosia
radou zakaznickych auditd a stala se tak global-
nim dodavatelem pro velké nadnarodn! spolec-
nosty, které provozu)f své zavody po celem svete.
Spolatnost GEVORKYAN v zasade musl fesit je-
den jediny probléem, ktery spotiva v nutnost! ne-
ustalého rozsirovani vyrobnich kapacit. Technolo-
gle praskove metalurgle je totl2 nasobne levnajs!
na? Jiné metody pro vyrobu kovovych soutastek.
To zviaste v dobe krize, kdy se zvysuje tiak na
Usporu nakladd, vytvat zastupy novych Kientd,
ktatf od spolecnosti GEVORKYAN chtéjf odebirat
produkty.
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*Finanéni vysledky 2o rok 2022 jsou piedbés

Navic praskova metalurgle ma dalsi zasadni vyhodu. Pri nevzni-
ka takrka 2adny odpad, co2 je vyznamny rozdil oproti klasickemu obrabeni
kowvli. Cely vyrobni proces je energeticky efektivni, nizkoemisni a Setff surovi-
ny. Zviaste v dobe energeticke krize se pak velice vypiatilo, 2 pfl vyrobe ve
spolecnosti GEVORKYAN je vyu2ivana energle z obnovitelmych zdrojl.

GEVORKYAN pro Investory

Rostouc! z3jem o technologll praskove metalurgie nutl spolecnost
GEVORKYAN, aby dale rozsifovala svou vyrobu. Dodatecny kapital na Investi-
ceziskala spole¢nost vstupem na Burzu cennych papind Praha v lonském roce,
se kterym )i Jako hlavni poradce pomahala spolatnost Versute investments
a take BH Securities. Jednalo se o vstup prvni slovenske spolecnost! na pra2-
skou burzu a rovnou 3lo o historicky nejvets! IPO (vefejnou nabidiu akall) na
trhu PX START. Nyni tady mohou Investoft voing obchodovat s akclemi spo-
lecnost! GEVORKYAN na burze a podilet se tak na Jefich uspasich.

Spolecnost GEVORKYAN v roce 2022 dosahla na trzby z prodeje vyrobld
a sluzeb na grovni 58,77 millonu EUR a na zisk EBITDA 18,15 millonu EUR, co2
implikuje dalsi zvysen! EBITDA mar2e na droven 30,88 procenta. U tr2eb to
mamena ve srovnani s predchozim rokem devitiprocentni niist 2 prekonant
Jejich planovane hodnoty o témer 300 tisic EUR.
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Zdroj: GEVORKYAN, a.5, Versute Investments sz.o.
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V roce 2022 spoletnost GEVORKYAN dale vykazala provozni zisk na grovni
9,13 millonu EUR, coz v porovnani s predchozim rokem predstavuje nardst
0 18,84 procenta. Vysledek hospodareni po zdaneni pak cinil 3,76 milionu
EUR, coz predstavuje rist o 64,87 procenta oprot! predchazejicimu roku.

Spolatnost GEVORKYAN tak nadale pokratuje v dynamickem ristu, ktery
od roku 2010 do roku 2022 zachycuje graf. Na nem Je videt, jak postupnymi
a promiyslenymi kroky se trzby spoletnosti zvysily z priblizné 5 na 59 miliond
EUR.

V roce 2023 se spolecnost bude soustfedit na pokracovani realizace svych
rozvojovych pland, které investordm predstavila v ramcl opisu svych akci na
trhu PX Start Burzy cenmych papind Praha. Diky Investorskym panéziim se
dan rozsifovat vyrobu, coz umo2fufe uspokojovat stale vice zakazndkl. Lze
proto predpokiadat, 2e dalst st tr2eb a ziski pljde v souladu s vytyCenymi

plany.
gevorkyan.sk

Spole&nost GEVORKYAN dnes vyrabl vice nez 6 milioni kusii soutastek mé&si&né a na trh

uvadl( vice neZ 150 novych vyrobkii ro¢né pro klienty ve vice nez 30 zemich svéta.
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)aktuality.Sk 26.9.2022, autor: Martin Odkladal

Mnohé firmy Spekulovali s cenami energii a teraz za
to musia zaplatit (rozhovor)

Cela zelena politika EU je postavena na hlavu a je to vrchol
politickeho populizmu. Tvrdi priemyselnik Artur Gevorkyan v
rozhovore pre Aktuality.sk.

-V tejto firme sme radi za chyby a verejne o nich hovorime a ukazujeme ich. St
nevyhnutné pre dal3i rozvoj, nesmu sa viak opakovat tie isté,” s tymito slovami
nam ukazuje nastenku s fotkami zamestnancov majitel firmy Gevorkyan pri
naviteve jeho podniku. Na nej si okrem fotiek a mien méZe kaZzdy pozriet, akii
chybu dany pracovnik urobil a ako ju opravil a Co treba robit. aby sa uz
nezopakovala.

lento netradicny pristup celkom dobre vystihuje, akym spdsobom sa Arturovi
Gevorkyanovi podarilo vybudovat na Slovensku uspe3dny metalurgicky zavod a
priviest ho ako jediny vyrobny podnik na Ceskd burzu.

Redakcia Aktuality.sk sa rozpravala s tymto rodenym Arméncom 0 sucasnom vyvoji
nielen v slovenskom priemysle, ale aj o celkovej ekonomicke] situacii v EU.
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This document is a translation of the original Slovak version and is provided for informational purposes only. In the event of any discrepancies or
differences between this translation and the original document, the original Slovak version shall prevail. This translation does not carry the same
legal weight as the original document, which remains the authoritative source.



GEVORKYAN, a.s.

Individual Financial Position Statement

EUR thousand Note 31. december 2023 31. december 2022 1 January 2022

Intangible assets 5 11 330 11 461 11735
Property, plant and Equipment 6,7 104 006 90411 73 488
Total non-current assets 115 336 101 872 85 223
Stocks 26 672 23942 19 922
Trade receivables 29 907 23 508 21013
Income tax payable 10 0 0 73
Other current assets 10 684 620 423
Cash and cash equivalents 11 2 676 2725 1237
Total Current Assets 59 939 50 795 42 668
Total assets 175 275 152 667 127 891
Capital 12 16 657 16 657 13924
Share premium 12 24 695 24 695 0
Capital funds 12 12731 12 378 12 149
Retained earnings / (loss) of previous periods 12 13883 10 793 8739
Profit / (loss) for the period 12 3830 3 446 2283
Total Equity 71796 67 969 37 095
Bonds issued 14 8 063 9 888 18 565
Long-term loans and credits 13 35959 36 035 38 100
Long-term lease liabilities 7 551 835 798
Deferred tax liability 25 4748 3859 3058
Other long-term liabilities 16 2219 2332 2 446
Total long-term liabilities 51 540 52 949 62 967
Short-term bonds issued 14 10 466 8771 160
Short-term loans and credits 13 18 684 8 337 13679
Short-term reserves 17 183 166 157
Income tax payable 16 4 4 0
Short-term lease liabilities 7 365 472 628
Trade Payables 15 19971 11 594 12 061
Other short-term liabilities 16 2 266 2 405 1144
Total short-term liabilities 51 939 31749 27 829
Total liabilities 103 479 84 698 90 796
Total equity and liabilities 175 275 152 667 127 891

The notes on pages 5 to 52 form an integral part of the individual financial statements.



GEVORKYAN, a.s.

Individual statement of profit and loss and other components of comprehensive income

EUR thousand Note 2023 2022

Revenues from the sale of own products 18 49 382 35210
Revenues from the sale of services 18 11 385 10 312
Revenues 60 767 45 522
Change in own production 19 2294 5543
Material and energy consumption 20 -23 846 -18 851
Services 21 -13 723 -9 336
Personnel costs 22 -4 990 -4778
Other operating result 23 274 109
Operating profit 20776 18 209
Depreciation and amortization 6,7 -11 873 -9129
Profit / (loss) before interest, tax 8 903 9 080
Financial revenues 24 475 346
Financial costs 24 -4 369 -4 897
Profit/(loss) arising from financial operations, net -3 894 -4 551
Profit/(loss) before tax 5 009 4529
Income tax payable 25 -287 -284
Deferred income tax 25 -889 -801
Profit/(loss) 3830 3446
Other components of a comprehensive result 0 0
Overall Comprehensive Result 3830 3446
Earnings / (loss) per share (in euros) 0,23 0,21
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share (in euros) 0,23 0,22
Number of shares as at 31.12. 16 657 272 16 657 272
Average number of shares 16 657 272 15 746 339

The notes on pages 5 to 52 form an integral part of the individual financial statements.



GEVORKYAN, a.s.

Individual statement of changes in equity

EUR thousand

Balance as of January 1, 2023
Transfer of retained earnings to the statutory reserve fund
Profit / (loss) for the period

Other components of comprehensive income, after tax

Total comprehensive result for the period

Transactions with owners, accounted for directly in the cost of equity

Total transactions during the year
Balance as of December 31, 2023

Individual statement of changes in equity (continued)

EUR thousand

Balance as of 1 January 2022

Transfer of retained earnings to the statutory reserve fund
Profit / (loss) for the period

Subscription of shares

Other components of comprehensive income, after tax

Total comprehensive result for the period

Transactions with owners, accounted for directly in the cost of equity

Total transactions during the year
Balance as at 31 December 2022

The notes on pages 5 to 52 form an integral part of the individual financial statements.

Note

12
12
12

12

12

Note

12
12
12
12

12

12

Share

Other Equity

Statutory

Retained

Capital premium Funds reserve fund  earnings/ (loss) Total

16 657 24 695 11 307 1071 14 238 67 969

354 (354) -

3830 3830

- - - 354 3477 3830

16 657 24 695 11 307 1425 17 715 71796

Capital Share Other Equity Statutory _ Retained Total
premium Funds reserve fund  earnings/ (loss)

13924 - 11 307 842 11 021 37 095

228 (228) -

3 446 3 446

2733 24 695 27 428

2733 24 695 - 228 3217 30 874

16 657 24 695 11 307 1071 14 238 67 969




GEVORKYAN, a.s.

Individual cash flow statement

1.1.2023 - 1.1.2022 -
EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Profit (loss) before tax for the year Note 5009 4529
Adjustments for non-cash operations:
Profit from the sale of buildings, property and equipment and intangible assets 79 (33)
Depreciation of own property, plant and equipment and depreciation of intangible assets 5,6,7 11873 9129
Creation of a provision for receivables (24) 16
Change in the status of the
stock OI% 67) 5
Impairment of goodwill - -
Revaluation of fair value through the profit and loss account - -
Proceeds from the sale of parts of the business - -
Revaluation of fixed assets - -
Interest expense (net) 24 3536 3131
Change in reserves 17 9
Income tax 25 (287) (284)
Decrease (increase) of trade receivables and accruals (6 435) (2707)
Decrease (increase) of
inventories ( ) (2663) (4 024)
(Decrease) increase in liabilities and accruals 8121 473
Other items of a non-monetary nature (102) 1155
Cash flow from operating activities 19 053 11 398
Income tax paid (287) 73
Net cash flow from operating activities 18 766 11471
Cash flows from investment activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 5,6,7 (25 337) (26 650)
Income from the sale of buildings, constructions, machinery and 6
equipment 9 Y 2974 3659
Transfer of fixed assets to property, plant and equipment - -
Transfer of property, plant and equipment to inventory - -
Purchase/investment in fixed assets - -
Income from the sale of fixed assets - -
Long-term loans granted - -
Long-term loan repayments - -
Procurement of financial investments - -
Income from the sale of financial investments - -
Net cash outstanding with a subsidiary - -
Proceeds from the sale of a Non-controlled interest in a subsidiary - -
Interest Received / (Paid) (546) (317)
Net cash flows used in investment activities (22 909) (23 308)
Cash flows from financing activities
Credit and loan repayments 27 (2 592) (8 242)
Income from loans and 27
advances 12358 )
Income from subscribed shares and shares - 27 428
Expenses for the payment of liabilities arising from long-term 27
secuﬁties i ’ ? (1285) (1514)
Expenditure on the repayment of lease liabilities 27 (2 994) (2 897)
Interest paid 27 (1391) (1 448)
Dividend payment - -
Net cash flows used in financing activities 4095 13 327
Net increase/(decrease) of money and cash equivalents (49) 1489
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 11 2725 1237
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 11 2 676 2725

The notes on pages 5 to 52 form an integral part of the individual financial statements.




GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023
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GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

1. Company Information
(a) Basic information

GEVORKYAN, a.s. (hereinafter referred to as the "Company") is a joint-stock company established on September 16, 1996.
Until 20 January 1997, it was registered in the Commercial Register kept at the District Court of Banska Bystrica, Section Sa,
File 1232/S. On 13 May 2022, the company changed its legal form from the original limited liability company to the current joint-
stock company. The company is located at Tovarenska 504, Vlkanova, Slovak Republic, identification number 36 017 205.

The main subject of activity is:

Research and development in the field of natural and technical sciences

Powder metallurgy activity

Research and development in the field of social sciences and humanities

The purchase of goods for the purpose of selling them to the end consumer within the scope of a free trade
Purchase of goods for the purpose of their sale to other trade operators within the scope of a free trade
Mediation of trade and services within the scope of a free trade

Toolmaking

Heat treatment of metals

© ©® N o 0 p» w NP

Surface treatment of metals

=
o

. Repair of mechanical parts of machinery and equipment

=Y
[N

. Welding work

[y
N

. Mechanical engineering engineering services

=
w

. Medical Device Manufacturing
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. Manufacture of rubber and plastic products

=Y
(631

. Textile production

[EEN
(o2}

. Manufacture of pulp, paper, paperboard and articles of these materials

(b) Legal reason for the preparation of financial statements

The individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 have been prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS Accounting Standards") as adopted by the EU as voluntary financial
statements.

(c) Date of approval of the accounts for the previous period

The financial statements for the previous accounting period were approved by the General Meeting of the Company on
23.06.2023.

(d) Number of employees

Item Name 31.12.2023 31. 12.2022 1.1.2022
Average recalculated number of employees 173 180 149
The number of employees as at the date on which the financial statements

are prepared, of which: 168 172 156
Number of managers 4 4 4
Number of agency workers




GEVORKYAN, a.s.

Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

(e) Shareholder Structure of the Company

Shareholder structure of the Company as at 31.12.2023:

Amount of share Amount of share

Share of voting

Share of other

Companion capital [EUR} capital [%] rights [%] ems v ‘[’(f/z‘]er
Artur Gevorkyan 12 850 7% 7%
JEREME 437 3% 3%
BHS Fund PE 437 3% 3%
Free float 2933 17% 17%
Total 16 657 100% 100%

Structure of the Company's shareholders as at 31.12.2022:

Amount of share Amount of share Share of voting

Share of other

Companion capital [EUR} capital [%] rights [%] s \QI ‘E(t,/?]er
Artur Gevorkyan 12 850 7% 7%
JEREME 437 3% 3%
BHS Fund PE 437 3% 3%
Free float 2933 17% 17%
Total 16 657 100% 100%

(H Members of the statutory bodies of the company as of 31.12.2023

Board of directors:

Dipl. Ing. Artur Gevorkyan — Chairman of the Board of Directors

Supervisory Board:
Ing. Andrej Batovsky

— Chairman

Robert Gevorkyan — Member
Denisa Rie¢anova — Member

2. Significant accounting principles

(a) Declaration of conformity

The attached financial statements of the company for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 have been
prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) approved by the European Union
and the Interpretative Committee (IFRS IC) applicable to companies reporting under IFRS as voluntary financial
statements. All standards and interpretations that are effective and approved by the European Union (EU) as of 31
December 2023 have been used.

(b) Starting points for the assembly

For all periods, including the year ending 31.12.2023, the Company prepares proper individual financial statements in
accordance with local generally applicable accounting methods (SAS). These voluntary individual financial statements



GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

are the first financial statements prepared by the Company in accordance with IFRSs. More information on how the
Company has adopted IFRS is provided in paragraph 4.

Voluntary individual financial statements have been compiled on the basis of historical prices.

The Company's voluntary individual financial statements have been prepared under the assumption that the Company
will continue to operate. Until the date of approval of these financial statements, there are no known circumstances that
would indicate that the Company is unable to continue its activities.

The Company's management expects that the Company has sufficient funds to continue operations for at least the next
12 months and that the preparation of financial statements assuming continuity of its operations is reasonable.

The preparation of financial statements according to the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
EU requires the use of various judgments, assumptions and estimates. These have an impact on the amounts of reported
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. However, actual results are likely to differ from these estimates. Material
accounting estimates and management judgments that carry a significant risk of causing a material adjustment in the
future financial year are described in Section 3, Material Accounting Estimates and Assumptions.

Estimates and related assumptions are continuously reviewed. If the restatement relates to only one accounting period,
it shall be recognised in that period, and if the reassessment affects both current and future financial years, it shall be
recognised in the period in which the reassessment occurred and also in future periods.

Voluntary individual financial statements are prepared in thousands of euros, unless otherwise stated.
(¢) Applying new standards and interpretations

These voluntary individual financial statements are the first financial statements prepared by the Company in accordance with
IFRSs.

(d) International Financial Reporting Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective

Issued standards, interpretations and amendments to standards that are effective after December 31, 2023 and
that were not prematurely applied by the Company

e |IFRS 10, IAS 28: Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Non-Monetary Assets to an
Associate or Joint Venture in Exchange for Equity Interest (these amendments have not yet been approved
by the EU, the effectiveness of the amendments in the EU has been postponed indefinitely);

e |AS 1: Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities into Current
and Non-Current, Classification of Liabilities into Current and Non-Current — Shift in Effectiveness and Non-
Current Liabilities with Covenants (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2024, this
Standard has not yet been approved by the EU);

e |IFRS 16 Leases: Lease Liability on Sale and Leaseback (these amendments have not yet been approved by
the EU, the effectiveness of the amendments in the EU has been postponed indefinitely)

e Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier
Financing Agreements (these amendments have not yet been approved by the EU, the effectiveness of the
amendments in the EU has been postponed indefinitely)

e Amendments to IAS 12 Income Tax: International Tax Reform — Two-Pillar Model Rules (these amendments
have not yet been approved by the EU, the effectiveness of the amendments in the EU has been postponed
indefinitely)

e Amendments to IAS 21: Impact of Exchange Rate Changes: Lack of Convertibility (issued on 15 August
2023) - not yet approved by the EU - effective for annual financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2025;

e |IFRS 18 "Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements" (issued on or after 9 April 2024) - not yet
approved by the EU until the date of approval of these financial statements - effective for annual financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027;



GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

e |IFRS 19 "Non-Public Liability Subsidiaries: (issued on or after 9 May 2024) - as of the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, not yet approved by the EU - effective for annual financial periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027,

e Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 "Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments" (issued on or
after 30 May 2024) - not yet approved by the EU until the date of approval of these financial statements -
effective for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026;

e Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Contracts Relating to Nature-Dependent Electricity (issued on 18
December 2024) - not yet approved by the EU at the date of approval of these financial statements - effective
for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2026;

e Annual Enhancements Volume 11 (issued July 18, 2024) - not yet approved by the EU at the date of approval
of these financial statements - effective for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2026

¢ Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures: (in December 2015, the IASB postponed the effective date of these amendments indefinitely until
the outcome of its equity research project is known)

[ ]

The Company has not opted for the early adoption of any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been published
but has not yet entered into force.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of these standards on its financial statements.
(e) Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions

The items recognised in the Company's financial statements are expressed in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (functional currency). Individual financial statements are presented in
thousands of euros, which represent both the functional currency and the reporting currency of the Company.
Transactions in foreign currency are converted into euros at the exchange rate in force on the day preceding the date of
the accounting case. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are converted into euro at the
date on which the accounts are drawn up at the exchange rate of the European Central Bank prevailing on that date.

Exchange rate differences resulting from such conversions are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at cost are converted into euro at the exchange rate
prevailing at the date on which the financial statements are prepared.

(Hh Accounting

Financial assets and liabilities are netting and their net worth is recognised on the balance sheet when the Company has
a legally enforceable right to offset recognised values and when there is an intention to settle transactions on the basis
of their net difference.

(g) Intangible assets

Reporting and valuation

Purchased intangible fixed assets are measured at cost less depreciation (see Depreciation below) and accumulated
impairment losses (j). The purchase price includes the purchase price and the costs that are directly related to its procurement.

Intangible fixed assets generated by own operations are measured at cost less depreciation (see Depreciation below) and
accumulated impairment losses (j). Custom costs include direct material and labor costs and manufacturing overheads.

Intangible fixed assets acquired by other means (including know-how) are measured at the fair value at which the asset would
have been acquired at the time they are accounted for, less depreciation (see Depreciation below) and accumulated impairment
losses (j). This price is determined by an expert estimate, expert opinion or according to special regulations.



GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

Amortization

The depreciation of intangible fixed assets is accounted for in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life
of the asset concerned. The expected useful life, depreciation method and depreciation rate are set for each group of intangible
fixed assets as follows:

Annual depreciation

Estimated time of use Depreciation method

rate
Software 4 1/4 The Rovnomers
Valuable rights (know-
g ( 50 1/50 The Rovnomers

how)

(h) Propertay, Plant and Equipment

Own property

Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost or own cost, less depreciation (see Depreciation below) and accumulated
impairment losses (j). The cost includes all expenses directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Own costs of assets
created by their own activities include the cost of materials, direct labor costs, all directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to a state in which it is capable of operating in the specified manner. Where relevant, the purchase price/cost also includes an
initial estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring its location to its original condition, and the cost
of credits and borrowing as described below.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are part of the
cost of those assets.

If the items of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items of
property, plant and equipment.

Profit and loss from the disposal of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal and
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is reported in the profit and loss account, in net operating activities.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are only activated if it is probable that the Company will derive future economic benefits contained in the
relevant Property, Plant and Equipment item and the relevant costs can be measured reliably. All other costs, including
routine maintenance of the property, machinery and equipment, are recorded in the profit or loss in the period to which they
are related.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated from the depreciable value, which is the cost of the asset after deducting its residual value.
Depreciation is recognised with an impact on profit or loss in operating activities on a straight-line basis over the course of

estimated useful life of individual items of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation begins when the asset is available for
use. Land and acquired tangible assets are not depreciated.

Estimated useful lives, depreciation methods and depreciation rates are set for individual groups of property, machinery and
equipment and are as follows:

10



GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

Expected service life Annual depreciation Depreciation method
(years) rate
Building 60 1/60 linear
Transport 4 1/4 linear
Presses 30 1/30 linear
Ovens 35 1/35 linear
Stroje MIM (Metal Injection Moulding) 35 1/35 linear
Stroje HIP (Hot isostatic pressing) 35 1/35 linear
Machinery, apparatus and equipment 20 1/20 linear
Tools 15 1/15 linear

Capitalized finance costs

Financial costs related to an asset that requires a significant period of time to be brought into a condition necessary for its use
or sale are activated by the Company as part of the cost of the asset.

(i) Lease

When creating a contract, the company assesses whether the contract includes a lease. That is, whether the contract gives rise
to a right to control the use of identifiable assets for a certain period in exchange for consideration.

The company as a lessee

The Company applies a uniform approach to recognition and measurement for all leases, with the exception of short-term leases
(i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not include an option to
buy) and low-value leases (below EUR 10k). Lease payments for short-term leases and low-value leases are recognised on a
flat basis as an expense over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Determining whether a contract contains elements of a lease or is a lease depends on the substance of the contract at the time
it is concluded. A contract is considered to contain elements of a lease and is accounted for accordingly if the contract gives
rise to the right to control the use of the identified asset for a certain period in exchange for consideration.

This is fulfilled if the Company has both of the following rights during the period of use:
e the right to acquire substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the identified asset;
e the right to control the use of the identified asset.

On the lease commencement date (ie the date on which the underlying asset is available for use), the company shall recognise
the right-of-use asset and the lease liability. A right-of-use asset is valued at cost and represents the lessee's right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term.

The cost of an asset with a right of use includes:
¢ the amount of the initial valuation of the lease liability;
¢ all lease payments made before or on the lease commencement date, less any leasing incentives received,;
e any initial direct expenses incurred by the lesee; and
e an estimate of the costs incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset and in restoring it to
the location where it is located or in restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms of the lease,
if those costs are not incurred in order to build inventory.

After the lease commencement date, the Company shall measure the right-of-use asset in a manner consistent with the
valuation of the fixed assets owned by the Company. The methods of depreciation of depreciable assets in leases are also
consistent with the accounting policy for the depreciation of assets owned by the Company.
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GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

Expected service life Annual depreciation .
P P Depreciation method

(years) rate
Transport 4 1/4 The Rovhomers
Presses 30 1/30 The Rovhomers
Ovens 35 1/35 The Rovnomers
Stroje MIM (Metal Injection Moulding) 35 1/35 The Rovnomers
Stroje HIP (Hot isostatic pressing) 35 1/35 The Rovnomers
Machinery, apparatus and equipment 20 1/20 The Rovhomers

If ownership of a leased asset is transferred to the Company at the end of the lease period, or if the cost reflects the exercise
of a call option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The impairment also applies to assets within assets with rights of use. See accounting policies for impairment of non-financial
assets in item 2 (j) Impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of the lease
payments to be made during the lease term. Lease payments include fixed payments less any incentives received, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or interest rate, and amounts expected to mature under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the strike price of the call option at which it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise
it and the payment of termination penalties if the lease term reflects the exercise of the termination option.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that causes them to be paid occurs.

A company applies a practical tool in accordance with IFRS 16.15. The leasing components are not separate from the non-
leasing components.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses a predominantly implicit interest rate. In the event that it
cannot be reliably determined, the Company shall apply its incremental interest rate on the lessee loan at the lease
commencement date. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is revalued if there is a lease modification
—achange in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g. changes in future payments resulting from a change in the index
or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of the option to purchase the underlying asset.
When a lease liability is revalued due to a lease modification, the revaluation amount is taken into account in the amount of the
right-of-use asset, which is adjusted to its residual value by this value. The right-of-use asset is further depreciated from that
adjusted value.

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets

Factors that are considered important in assessing impairment of assets are mainly:
e technological progress,
e significant underperformance compared to historical or planned operating results;
¢ significant changes in the way the Company's assets are used or an overall change in the Company's strategy;
e obsolescence of products.

At each date of the preparation of the financial statements, the Company's assets are reassessed to determine whether there
is an objective indicator of impairment. If there are indications of a decrease in the value of the asset, the recoverable value is
estimated. If the carrying amount is higher than the recoverable amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable
amount.
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GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

The recoverable value of an asset is the value that is higher than its fair value less costs of sale and value from use. In
determining the value from use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value by applying a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market valuation of the time value of money and the risks specific to that asset. For an
asset that does not generate substantially discrete cash flows, the return value is determined for the cash-generating unit group
to which the asset belongs.

Inventories are reported at a lower amount from the cost of acquisition or cost of production and the net realisation value. The
net realisable value shall be equal to the estimated selling price, which is applied under normal conditions, less the estimated
cost of completion and the costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment losses on continuing operations, including impairments on inventory, are recognised in the profit and loss Account.

The Company assesses each financial year whether there is an indication that a previously recognised impairment may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If there is such an indication, the Company shall estimate the realisable value of the cash-
flow-generating asset or unit. A company is considered a single cash-flow-generating unit. A previously recognised impairment
shall be reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the realisable value of the asset since
the last impairment was recognised. The reversal of an impairment is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its carrying amount or the cost less depreciation that would have been determined if no impairment had been recognised
in prior periods. Such a reversal is recorded in the profit and loss account.

(k) Inventory

Purchased inventory is valued at cost price, which includes the purchase price and costs directly related to their acquisition
(shipping costs, customs duties, commissions, etc.). Received discounts, discounts, rebates reduce the purchase price of
inventory.

Inventories created by own operations are valued at own cost or net execution value, whichever is lower. Own costs include
direct material and labor costs and indirect production costs. Production overhead costs include machine service and repair,
electricity, water and gas consumption, asset depreciation, foreman wages, internal logistics costs, etc. The net strike
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of trade, less the estimated cost of completion and the cost of selling.

In the event of a temporary decrease in the net realisation value of inventories, a provision is created (see item 2 (j) Impairment).

(I) Financial instruments (excluding financial liabilities)

A financial instrument is any contract that results in the creation of a financial asset of one party and a financial liability or
equity instrument of the other party.

Financial assets are classified at initial recognition as those that are subsequently measured at amortised amount, fair value
through profit or loss, or fair value through other comprehensive income.

The classification of financial assets at initial valuation depends on the characteristics of their contractual cash flows and the
business model used by the Company to manage them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not include a significant
financing component, or for which the Company has chosen a simplified accounting procedure (i.e. lifetime expected losses are
included), the Company initially measures the financial asset at fair value, while for financial assets not included in the category
of instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, fair value is adjusted for transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not include a significant financing component, or for which the Company has chosen a simplified accounting procedure, are
measured at the transaction price determined in accordance with IFRS 15.

In order to be classified and measured at amortised value or fair value through other comprehensive income components, a

financial asset must give rise to cash flows that represent 'solely principal and interest payments (SPPI)' on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is carried out at the level of individual instruments.
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GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

The Company's Financial Asset Management Business Model expresses how the Company manages its financial assets to
generate cash flow. The business model determines whether the cash flows will arise either from the collection of contractual
cash flows or from the sale of financial assets, or both.

Subsequent valuation
For the purposes of subsequent valuation, financial assets are classified into four categories:

¢ financial assets at amortised value (debt financial instruments)

e financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income with recycling of accumulated
gains and losses (debt financial instruments)

¢ financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income without recycling of cumulative
gains and losses at recognition (equity financial instruments)

¢ financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

The company records only financial assets at amortized value.

Financial assets at amortised value (debt financial instruments)
A company values financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

e the financial asset is held under a business model that intends to hold the financial assets in order to collect
the contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of a financial asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates, which consist solely of
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised value are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method (EIR) and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss if the value of the relevant asset is derecognised or decreased.

De-billing

Financial assets (or, where applicable, part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) are derecognised
when:
e therights to receive cash flows from those assets expire, or
¢ the Company has transferred its cash flow rights from the relevant assets or will undertake to pay the full amount of
the cash flows received to a third party without significant delay ("pass-through arrangement”); and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards arising from the relevant assets, or (b) the Company
has not transferred or retained all of the risks and rewards arising from the relevant assets, but has transferred control
of those assets

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an expected credit loss (ECL) for all debt financial instruments that are not held at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company assesses each provision other than those listed below separately. The amount of
expected losses is based on the difference between all contractual cash flows payable to the Company under the contract
and any cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of the collateral held or other collateral that forms part of the terms of the
contract.

The company applies a simplified approach to calculating the ECL for trade receivables. For this reason, the Company
does not track changes in credit risk, but reports a provision based on the value of the lifetime ECL at each date of
preparation of the financial statements. The Company has established a method that is based on its historical experience
in the area of losses on receivables and adjusted for expected factors that relate to individual debtors and the economic
environment.

A company considers a financial asset to be defaulted if the contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be defaulted if, based on internal or external
information, it is unlikely that the Company will recover the full outstanding contract amount without realising collateral. A
financial asset is depreciated when all reasonable options for recovering the contractual cash flows have been exhausted.
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GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of money in bank accounts, valuables and cash held with the Company. These are short-
term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are directly convertible into a pre-known
amount of cash.

The value of cash and cash equivalents recognised in the financial statements in the statement of cash flows includes the cash
and cash equivalents listed above.

If there is a decrease in the value of a financial asset that is not revalued at fair value at the date of the financial statements,
the difference is treated as a temporary impairment and is accounted for as a provision.

(n) Trade payables and other liabilities
Trade payables and other liabilities are recognised at amortised cost (see item (0) Financial liabilities).
(o) Financial commitments

All financial liabilities are measured at fair value at initial recognition, plus directly attributable transaction costs for loans and
advances.

The Company's financial liabilities consist of trade payables and other liabilities, overdrafts, credits and loans, issued bonds.

Financial liabilities that are not financial instruments measured at fair value with changes recognised in profit or loss are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate. Profits and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account
after depreciation and amortisation. The amortised value is calculated by taking into account all costs and discounts or
settlement premiums and fees or charges that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Amortisation using the effective
interest rate is recognised in finance costs in the Profit and Loss Account.

(p) State subsidies

Subsidies are reported to as the State subsidies if there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy has been received and that
all conditions associated with the receipt of the subsidy have been met. If the subsidy relates to the reimbursement of costs, it
is reported as revenue during the period necessary to systematically compensate the subsidy with the costs for which the
subsidy is intended. If the grant relates to the acquisition of fixed assets, it is accounted for as deferred income and is accounted
for equally in the profit and loss account over the estimated useful life of the asset concerned.

(q) Reserves

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position if, as a result of a past event, the Company has an existing legal
or implicit obligation that can be reliably estimated and it is probable that the fulfilment of that obligation will result in a loss of
economic benefits in the future. In determining the value of provisions, the expected future cash flows are amortised to their
present value by applying a pre-tax discount rate that takes into account the current market assessment of the value of money
and the risks associated with the liability.

Short-term employee benefits
Liabilities arising from short-term employee benefits are expressed on an undiscounted basis and are recognised as costs at
the time the work is performed by the employees. In the event that the Company has a legal or contractual obligation as a result

of past work performed by employees and the amount of the liability can be reliably estimated, the liability will be recognised in
the amount of the estimated short-term monetary reward or planned profit share.

15



GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

(r) Sales

Sales are valued at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled in exchange for
the transfer of goods, products and services. A company accounts for revenue from the sale of its own products and revenue
from the provision of services, while revenue from the sale of its own products is recognised at the time of transfer of control
and ownership of the product, usually after delivery. Revenues from the provision of services are accrued in time depending on
the period during which the service was provided. Sales do not include value added tax. They are also reduced by discounts
and deductions (rebates, bonuses, discounts, credit notes, etc.).

(s) Products in progress

Products in progress are products in progress on which it is necessary to carry out further processing (compaction,
galvanization, metal processing, etc.) necessary for the completion of powder metallurgy products to the final state, and thus
for the subsequent sale of products to third parties. The Company sells the products in progress to its subcontractors, who
process the products and then sell them back to the Company. The company uses this method of cooperation to eliminate the
costs associated with the delivery of damaged machined products. Products in progress are reported at net value as operating
expenses.

(t) Financial Returns and Costs
Financial income and expenses are accounted for using the effective interest rate method and are recognised with an impact
on profit or loss on an accrual basis in the period to which they belong, independently of the actual payments of those gains

and expenses.

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets shall be
recognised with an impact on profit or loss using the effective interest rate method.

(u) Income tax

Income tax includes both tax payable and tax deferred. These taxes are recorded in the profit and loss account, except when it
relates to business combinations or items reported directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Tax payable

Income tax payable is the expected tax liability or receivable from taxable income or losses for an accounting year, using the
tax rate applicable to that financial year and adjustments to the tax liability of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax base. Deferred tax is not calculated from temporary differences that arise from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and which, at the time of the transaction, has no effect on
either the profit or loss of business or the tax base.

Deferred tax reflects tax implications that track the way in which the Company expects the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities to be returned or settled at the end of the financial year.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rate of tax that is expected to be applied to temporary differences at the time they are settled,

using the tax rates under the laws that have been approved or approved in substance by the date on which the accounts are
prepared.
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A deferred tax asset and a liability may be offset against each other if there is a legally enforceable right to offset the tax liability
and receivable due and if they are the same tax authority and the same taxpayer, or they relate to different taxpayers, but they
intend to settle the tax liabilities and receivables net or their tax receivables and liabilities will be realised at the same time.

A deferred tax asset from unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences is accounted for only if it is
probable that the future tax base against which the temporary differences can be offset is achievable. A deferred tax asset is
reviewed on each date on which the financial statements are prepared and is reduced to the extent that it is unlikely that the
income tax base will be reached.

(v) Dividends

Dividends are recognised in the statement of changes in equity and as a liability in the period when they are approved.

(w) Reporting by segment

Operating segments are the parts of the company that are able to generate revenues and costs, about which financial
information is available, which is regularly evaluated by decision-makers in deciding on the allocation of resources and in
determining performance. Management pursues only one revenue-generating operating segment, which represents the
company as a whole.

(x) Fair value estimates

The following paragraphs describe the main methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial assets and
liabilities.

Credits, loans and bonds

For loans and advances without a specified maturity, fair value has been determined as the amount of liabilities due at the date
at which the financial statements are prepared. For loans, loans and bonds with agreed maturities, fair value is determined on
the basis of discounted cash flows using the current interest rates currently offered for loans and advances with similar
maturities.

Trade receivables and other financial receivables

Short-term receivables without the specified interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount if the discounting effect
is insignificant. For receivables with a residual maturity of less than one year, their nominal value is assumed to represent also
its fair value. Fair value is determined at initial recognition and for the purposes of end-of-year disclosure.

Trade payables and other financial liabilities

Trading liabilities and other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. The carrying amount of trade payables and
other financial liabilities is approximately equal to their fair value.

Money and cash equivalents

For money and cash equivalents, their nominal value is assumed to represent both fair value.
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3. Major accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted
by the EU, requires the use of certain fundamental accounting estimates. It also requires management to use their
judgment in the process of applying the company's accounting policies. Therefore, these accounting estimates will
inevitably only rarely be consistent with the actual results. Estimates and assumptions that carry a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment in the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in a future financial year are described
below. Estimates and assumptions are continuously reviewed. If the restatement relates to only one accounting period,
it shall be recognised in that period, and if the reassessment affects both current and future financial years, it shall be
recognised in the period in which the reassessment occurred and also in future periods.

Provision for Assessable Rights

The Company's accounting method for assessing the potential impairment of valuable rights is the annual assessment
of the existence of impairment indicators based on an updated sales forecast. The company prepares a sales forecast
based on planned projects with customers. To assess the indicators of impairment of valuable rights, the company uses
the RMM (Relief from Royalty Method) model that evaluates the fair value of the valuable right. The model evaluates fair
value based on the hypothetical value of discounted royalties, for which the Company would procure an assessable right
from an external environment. The inputs to the model are forecasted sales, the royalty rate determined by external
experts, the lifetime of the assessable right determined by external experts, and the discount rate taking into account the
expected tax rates. If indicators of impairment of valuable rights are identified, the Company prepares a calculation of the
provision for these rights.
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4. First application of IFRS

These voluntary financial statements prepared as at 31.12.2023 are the first financial statements prepared by the
Company in accordance with IFRSs. During all previous accounting periods and, as well as during the accounting period
from 1.1.2023 to 31.12.2023, the Company prepares regular individual financial statements in accordance with local
generally binding accounting methods (SAS).

The Company prepared voluntary financial statements in accordance with IFRS applicable for the period ended
December 31, 2023, together with comparable data for the financial year ended December 31, 2022 as described in the
item Significant Accounting Principles. In preparing these voluntary financial statements, a Statement of Financial Position
as of 1 January 2022, the date of the Company's transition to IFRSs, was prepared. This item describes the main
adjustments made by the Company in presenting the financial statements prepared under SAS, including the Statement
of Financial Position as of January 1, 2022 and the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The Company applied IFRS 1 — First Application of International Financial Reporting Standards in the preparation of the
Company's Financial Position Statement as of the date of transition to IFRS. IFRS 1 defines the procedures that a
Company must follow when applying IFRS for the first time as a basis for preparing financial statements. The Company
is required to implement accounting policies in accordance with IFRS as of 31 December 2023 and apply them
retrospectively in order to report the Company's Statement of Position as of the date of transition to IFRSs, i.e. 1 January
2022.

Application of exemptions

IFRS 1 allows for a number of exceptions to the retroactive application of some IFRS requirements.
The Company has applied the following exceptions:

Leasing

In accordance with IFRS 1.D9, the Company has assessed whether contracts existing at the date of transition to IFRSs
contain a lease, taking into account the facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition.

Intangible assets

In accordance with IFRS 1, Appendix D, the Company has decided to measure Intangible Assets at a previous GAAP
measurement. It considers this valuation to be the purchase price at the date of transition (the so-called deemed cost).

Real Estate, Machinery and Equipment

In accordance with IFRS 1, Appendix D, the Company has decided to measure the Property, Plant and Equipment item
in a prior GAAP measurement. It considers this valuation to be the purchase price at the date of transition (the so-called
deemed cost).

Interest expense

In accordance with IFRS 1, Appendix D, the Company has decided to apply the requirements of IAS 23 Borrowing Costs
related to the capitalization of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets from the date of transition to IFRSs. As at the date of the changeover, the Company did not
retrospectively reassess the components of borrowing costs that it had recognised in accordance with SAS. From the
date of transition, the incurred borrowing costs shall be recognised in accordance with 1AS 23.

Estimates

The estimates used by the Company in preparing the financial statements as at 1 January 2022 and as at 31 December
2022 are identical to those used in the preparation of the financial statements at the same date under SAS (after taking
into account changes in accounting principles).
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Individual statement of financial position as at 31.12.2023

SAS as of IFRS as of

EUR thousand Note 31.12.2023 Adjustment 31.12.2023
Intangible assets 11 330 0 11 330
Property, Plant and Equipment 103 895 111 104 006
Total non-current assets 115 225 111 115 336
Stocks 26 672 0 26 672
Trade receivables 29 914 -38 29 907
Other current assets 656 28 684
Cash and cash equivalents 2676 0 2 676
Total Current Assets 59 945 -10 59 939
Total assets 175170 101 175 2758
Capital 16 657 0 16 657
Share premium 24 695 0 24 695
Capital funds 12 731 0 12731
Retained earnings / (loss) of previous periods 13777 106 13 883
Profit / (loss) for the period 3749 81 3830
Total Equity 71 609 187 71 796
Bonds issued 8291 -228 8063
Long-term loans and credits 44 449 - 8490 35959
Long-term lease liabilities 5432 -5 304 551
Deferred tax liability 4 698 -2 4 696

Other long-term liabilities 2219 0 2219
Total long-term liabilities 65 089,00 -13 549 51 540,00
Short-term bonds issued 10 486 -20 10 466
Short-term loans and credits 3160 15524 18 684
Short-term reserves 310 -127 183
Income tax payable 4 0 4
Short-term lease liabilities 2198 -1 833 365
Trade Payables 19971 0 19971
Other short-term liabilities 2 347 -81 2 266
Total short-term liabilities 38 476 13 463 51939
Total liabilities 103 565 -86 103 479
Total equity and liabilities 175174 101 175 275
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Individual statement of profit and loss and other components of comprehensive income for the period from 1.1.2023
to 31.12.2023

Note SAS 1.1.- IFRS 1.1.-
EUR thousand 31.12.2023 Adjustment 31.12.2023
Revenues from the sale of own products 65 080 -15 699 49 382
Revenues from the sale of services 11 385 0 11 385
Revenues 76 465 -15 699 60 767
Change in own production 2294 0 2294
Material and energy consumption -40 703 16 857 -23 846
Services -12 677 -1 046 -13723
Personnel costs -4 990 0 -4 990
Other operating result 256 18 274
Earnings / (loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) 20 644 131 20 776
Depreciation and amortization -11 767 -106 -11 873
Profit / (loss) before interest, tax 8 877 25 8 903
Financial revenues 475 0 475
Financial costs -4 448 80 -4 369
Profit/(loss) arising from financial operations, net -3974 80 -3894
Profit/(loss) before tax 4903 105 5009
Income tax payable -287 0 -287
Deferred income tax -868 -21 -889
Profit/(loss) 3749 80 3830
Other components of a comprehensive result 0 0 0
Overall Comprehensive Result 3749 80 3830
Earnings / (loss) per share (in euros) 0,23 0,23
Earnings / (loss) per share (in euros) 0,23 0,24
Number of shares as at 31.12. 16 657 272 16 657 272
Average number of shares 16 657 272 15 746 339
Individual statement of financial position as at 31.12.2022
EUR thousand Note SAS k 31.12.2022 Adjustment IFRS k 31.12.2022
Intangible assets 11 461 0 11 461
Real Estate, Machinery and Equipment 90 194 217 90 411
Total non-current assets 101 655 217 101 872
Stocks 23942 0 23942
Trade receivables 23534 -26 23508
Other current assets 621 -1 620
Cash and cash equivalents 2725 0 2725
Total Current Assets 50 822 -27 50 795
Total assets 152 477 190 152 667
Capital 16 657 0 16 657
Share premium 24 695 0 24 695
Capital funds 12 378 0 12 378
Retained earnings / (loss) of previous periods 10 596 197 10 793
Profit / (loss) for the period 3535 -89 3446
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Total Equity 67 861 108 67 969
Bonds issued 9999 -111 9 888
Long-term loans and credits 35250 -785 36 035
Long-term lease liabilities 5323 -4 488 835
Deferred tax liability 3831 28 3859
Other long-term liabilities 2501 -169 2332
Total long-term liabilities 56 904 -3 955 52 949
Short-term bonds issued 8823 -52 8771
Short-term loans and credits 2290 6 047 8 337
Short-term reserves 210 -44 166
Income tax payable 4 0 4
Short-term lease liabilities 2090 -1618 472
Trade Payables 11594 0 11 594
Other short-term liabilities 2701 -296 2 405
Total short-term liabilities 27712 4037 31749
Total liabilities 84 616 82 84 698
Total equity and liabilities 152 477 190 152 667

Individual statement of profit and loss and other components of the comprehensive result for the period from 1.1.2022
to 31.12.2022

Note SAS1.1.- IFRS 1.1.-

EUR thousand 31.12.2022 Adjustment 31.12.2022
Revenues from the sale of own products 48 361 -13 151 35210
Revenues from the sale of services 10 312 0 10 312
Revenues 58 673 -13 151 45 522
Change in the production status of your own business 5543 0 5543
Material and energy consumption -32 939 14 090 -18 849
Services -8 564 -771 -9 336
Personnel costs -4778 0 -4 778
Other operating result 119 -10 109
Earnings / (loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation and

amortization (EBITDA) 18 053 156 18 211
Depreciation and amortization -8 968 -161 -9129
Profit / (loss) before interest, tax 9 085 -5 9 082
Financial revenues 345 1 346
Financial costs -4 787 -111 -4 897
Profit/(loss) arising from financial operations, net -4 441 -109 -4 551
Profit/(loss) before tax 4 644 -115 4531
Income tax payable -284 0 -284
Deferred income tax -825 24 -801
Profit/(loss) 3535 -89 3446
Other components of a comprehensive result 0 0 0
Overall Comprehensive Result 3535 -89 3446
Earnings / (loss) per share (in euros) 0,21 0,21
Earnings / (loss) per share (in euros) 0,21 0,22
Number of shares as at 31.12. 16 657 272 16 657 272
Average number of shares 16 657 272 15 746 339
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Individual statement of financial position as of 1.1.2022

EUR thousand Bod SAS k 31.12.2021 Adjustment IFRS k 1.1.2022

Intangible assets 11735 0 11735
Property, Plant and Equipment 73110 378 73 488
Total non-current assets 84 845 378 85 223
Stocks 19 922 0 19 922
Trade receivables 21 064 -51 21013
Income tax payable 73 0 73
Other current assets 391 32 423
Cash and cash equivalents 1237 0 1237
Total Current Assets 42 687 -19 42 668
Total assets 127 532 359 127 891
Capital 13924 0 13924
Share premium 0 0 0
Capital funds 12 149 0 12 149
Retained earnings / (loss) of previous periods 8 541 198 8739
Profit / (loss) for the period 2283 0 2283
Total Equity 36 897 198 37 095
Bonds issued 18 852 -287 18 565
Long-term loans and credits 39719 -1619 38 100
Long-term lease liabilities 4218 -3 420 798
Deferred tax liability 3006 52 3058
Other long-term liabilities 2913 -467 2 446
Total long-term liabilities 68 708 -5741 62 967
Short-term bonds issued 138 22 160
Short-term loans and credits 5764 7915 13679
Short-term reserves 225 -68 157
Short-term lease liabilities 1942 -1 314 628
Trade Payables 12 061 0 12 061
Other short-term liabilities 1797 -653 1144
Total short-term liabilities 21 927 5902 27 829
Total liabilities 90 635 161 90 796
Total equity and liabilities 127 532 360 127 892
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Notes on the reconsolidation of the Company's Statement of Financial Position as at 1 January 2022 and as at 31
December 2022

A. Revenues
In its individual financial statements prepared in accordance with SAS, the Company reported products in
progress, described in paragraph 2(c), as part of the Revenues from the sale of its own products. In accordance
with IFRSs, cooperative products are recognised at net value as part of operating expenses.

B. Reserves
Part of the provisions, such as the audit reserve and uninvoiced deliveries, were presented as reserves in the
individual financial statements. They are presented as other liabilities in the individual IFRS financial statements.

C. Loans
On the basis of loan agreements, the Company is obliged to meet certain financial and other conditions. As the
Company did not meet financial and other conditions for some loans and did not receive confirmation from the
bank ("covenant waiver") by the end of the accounting year that it would not apply sanctions for breach, the
Company proceeded to reclassify between the short-term and long-term parts of the loans for the purposes of
IFRS.

D. Bonds
. In its individual financial statements prepared in accordance with SAS, the company reported the value of the
bonds according to SAS. Bonds for IFRS purposes are measured and recognised at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate in accordance with IFRS 9.

E. Provision
In its financial statements prepared according to SAS, the company reported a provision only for overdue
receivables. In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company completed and recognised a provision as an expected loss
on all receivables, i.e. receivables that are still mature.

F. Lease

According to SAS, leasing is classified as a finance lease or an operating lease. Operating lease repayments are
recognised as an operating expense in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis, over the lease period.
In accordance with IFRSs, as set out in paragraph (i) Leases, the Company applies a uniform approach to
recognition and measurement for all leases, with the exception of current and small asset leases. The Company
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets. As of the date of transition to IFRS, the Company has retrospectively assessed all operating
lease agreements. Contracts that have been assessed as incorporating a lease in accordance with IFRS 16 have
been recognised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy described in paragraph (i) Leases.

G. Sale and leaseback
The company carried out a number of sales and leaseback transactions. According to SAS, assets that have
been sold and subsequently leased back (through a financial lease) to the Company are reported together with
the Company's own assets. Lease payments are reported as Lease Liabilities. In accordance with IFRSs, the
company assessed whether, in the case of such transactions, the transfer of assets itself constituted a sale and
transfer of control under IFRS 15. In the event that it did not, the Company reclassified the future leaseback
payments and recognised them as a financial liability in accordance with IFRS 9.

H. Deferred tax
Some of the above changes have resulted in the creation of temporary differences. In connection with the
Company's accounting policy, the Company must disclose the tax impact of these differences. Deferred tax
adjustments are recognised in retained earnings from previous periods.
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5. Intangible assets

A Other fixed Ac_quwed
Software ssgssable intangible . flxe(_j Total

rights intangible

assets
EUR thousand assets
Cost
Initial balance as of
1.1.2023 171 13871 534 0 14 576
Increases 7 156 163
Decreases 0
Transfers 0
Balance as at
31.12.2023 178 13871 534 156 14 739
Depreciation and impairment losses
Initial balance as of
1.1.2023 154 2810 151 0 3115
Increases 6 277 11 294
Decreases 0
Balance as at
31.12.2023 160 3087 162 0 3409
Residual value
k 1.1.2023 16 11 061 384 0 11 461
k 31.1.12.2023 17 10 784 373 156 11 330
Other fixed Acquned
Software Assgssable intangible . flxeq Total

rights assets intangible
EUR thousand assets
Cost
Initial balance as of
1.1.2022 152 13871 534 0 14 557
Increases 19 19
Decreases 0
Transfers 0
Balance as at
31.12.2022 171 13871 534 0 14 576
Depreciation and impairment losses
Initial balance as of
1.1.2022 149 2533 140 0 2822
Increases 5 277 11 293
Decreases 0
Balance as at
31.12.2022 154 2 810 151 0 3115
Residual value
k 1.1.2022 3 11 338 395 11735
k 31.1.12.2022 16 11 061 384 11461

Valuable rights represent know-how, namely:

1) For powder metallurgy, which represents scientific, production-technical, technological knowledge and business
information used in the processing and sale of powdered metals. The know-how was invested in the company
(registered capital) as a non-monetary contribution in 2004 and its stated valuation in the amount of EUR 2,164
thousand represents the fair value of the assets based on an expert opinion prepared as of 26 July 2004.

2) For Metal injection molding (MIM), which is a state-of-the-art method of joining metals by injection molding of
powdered metals on injection molding machines. The know-how was invested in the company (registered capital)
as a non-monetary contribution in 2014 and its initial valuation of EUR 11,707 thousand represents the fair value
of the assets based on an expert opinion prepared as at 30 June 2014.
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The Company reassessed the amount of valuable rights based on an expert opinion to EUR 12,500 thousand, which
represented the fair value as of the valuation date of 30 September 2017. The company plans to write down assessable
rights by 2065.

When determining the depreciation period of know-how, the company proceeded from the fact that powder metallurgy as
an industry is one of the most advancing technical fields in the world. The company expects to use know-how for at least
the next 50 years due to the global growth of industries dealing with electric vehicles, aviation and also due to emerging
industries such as 3D printing, which will ensure high demand for powder metallurgy products.

Research & Development
Information on the research and development activities of the accounting unit for the current accounting period, broken
down into:

- research costs of EUR 1 684 198 (2022: EUR 896 269);

- Unactivated development costs of €919,357 (2022: €1,511,289);

- activated development costs of €0 (2022: €0).

Lien
The company did not own any long-term intangible assets on which a lien is established in 2023 or 2022
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6. Real Estate, Machinery and Equipment

Separate
movable

Advances on

Acquired tangible

Estate Frameworks property and tangible fixed - Together
fixed assets
sets of movable assets granted

property
EUR thousand
Cost
Initial balance as of
1.1.2023 441 4 464 96 802 2001 5342 109 050
Additions 151 308 22 038 648 4742 27 887
Decreases 7 399 7 399
Transfers 687 6 656 -2 001 -5 342 0
Transfer from right-of-use assets to own assets 1098 1098
Balance as at 31.12.2023 592 5459 119 195 648 4742 130 636
Depreciation and impairment losses
Initial balance as of
1.1.2023 0 1001 20 098 0 0 21 099
Additions 84 11 210 11 294
Decreases 4 346 4 346
Transfer from right-of-use assets to own assets 431 431
Balance as at 31.12.2023 0 1085 27 393 0 0 28 478
Residual value
k 1.1.2023 441 3463 76 704 2001 5342 87 951
k 31.12.2023 592 4374 91 802 648 4742 102 158

Separate

movable Advances on Acquired tangible

Estate Frameworks property and tangible fixed q g Together

EUR thousand

sets of movable
property

assets granted

fixed assets
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Cost

Initial balance as of

1.1.2022 441 4161 78 741 44 3796 87 183
Impact of IFRS as of 1

January 2022

Increases 303 21 166 2001 5342 28 812
Decreases 7827 0 7827
Transfers 3839 -44 -3796 -1
Transfer from right-of-use assets to own assets 883 883
Balance as at 31.12.2022 441 4 464 96 802 2001 5 342 109 050
Depreciation and impairment losses

Initial balance as of

1.1.2022 0 936 15610 0 0 16 546
Increases 65 8 344 8 409
Decreases 4165 4165
Transfer from right-of-use assets to own assets 309 309
Balance as at 31.12.2022 0 1001 20 098 0 0 21 099
Residual value

k 1.1.2022 441 3225 63 131 44 3796 70 637
k 31.12.2022 441 3463 76 704 2001 5342 87 951

In 2023 and 2022, the company did not acquire tangible fixed assets free of charge.
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Property Insurance

Fixed assets are insured by UNIQA and Alianz-Slovenska poistovia. Property insurance mainly includes insurance of
production machinery (fracture of the machine and element) and motor vehicle insurance (accident insurance). The

annual limit of indemnity is EUR 48,003 thousand for all places of insurance in the territory of the Slovak Republic.

Lien

As of 31 December 2023, a lien on tangible fixed assets has been established. The value of tangible fixed assets on
which a lien is established is in the amount of EUR 16,040 thousand

7. Lease

Right-of-use assets

Machines

Transport (furnaces, presses Total
EUR thousand and others)
Cost
Initial balance as of
1.1.2023 694 2102 2 796
Additions 85 85
Decreases 0 0 0
Transfer from right-of-use assets to own assets -67 -1 031 -1 098
Modification 0 0 0
Balance as at 31.12.2023 712 1071 1783
Depreciation and impairment losses
Initial balance as of
1.1.2023 519 321 840
Additions 86 80 166
Decreases 0 0 0
Transfer from right-of-use assets to own assets -65 -366 -431
Balance as at 31.12.2023 540 35 575
Residual value
k 1.1.2023 176 1780 1956
k 31.12.2023 172 1036 1208

Machines

Transport (furnaces, presses Together
EUR thousand and others)
Cost
Initial balance as of
1.1.2022 761 2 309 3070
Additions 59 550 609
Decreases 0 0 0
Transfer from right-of-use assets to own assets -125 -758 -883
Modification 0 0 0
Balance as at 31.12.2022 695 2102 2 796
Depreciation and impairment losses
Initial balance as of
1.1.2022 506 388 896
Additions 143 112 255
Decreases 0 0 0
Transfer from right-of-use assets to own assets -130 -179 -309
Balance as at 31.12.2022 519 321 840
Residual value
k 1.1.2022 255 1921 2176
k 31.12.2022 176 1780 1956
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Lease liabilities:

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022

Long-term lease liabilities -551 -835 -798
Short-term lease liabilities -365 -472 -628
Total -916 -1 307 -1 426

Future lease payments:

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022

Up to 1 year (spell+truth) 389 496 1115
1 - 5 years (interest +

principal) 559 846 365
more than 5 years (interest + principal) 0 11 0
Total 948 1353 1479

Leasing — additional information:

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Interest expense on

leases --255 -162
Lease write-off 166 255
Lease Payments -2994 -2 897
Short-term leasing 0 20
Low-value assets 155 12

Leased property consists mainly of presses, furnaces and automobiles (see note 7 — Right-of-use assets).
The leasing agreement with Tatra-Leasing, s.r.0. contains the following specific conditions that the company must comply
with:
1. An aggregate DEBT/EBITDA ratio of less than 5.
2. Aggregate DSCR greater than 1.3.
3. Equity to total liabilities ratio greater than 30%.
As of December 31, 2023, the company complied with these conditions.

As of December 31, 2022, the company complied with these conditions.

8. Inventory

EUR thousand Residual value  costaozz  Residualvalue  cogpagpp  ResiAUAIVAle  cogt1.2022

Material 1045 1045 608 608 2131 2131
Work in progress 13923 13931 14 738 14 780 10 865 10 903
Products 11704 11711 8 596 8 621 6 926 6 950
Inventory total 26 672 26 686 23942 24 009 19 922 19 985

The valuation of surplus, obsolete and low-turnover inventories is reduced to a lower use value through provisions. The
provision was determined by the company's management on the basis of the expected ratio of the strike price of the
inventory compared to the production or purchase price.
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The evolution of the inventory provision during the current and immediately preceding accounting period is shown in the

following tables:

Provisions for inventory

EUR thousand 1.1.2023 Creation Release Use 31.12.2023

0 0
Work in progress 42 7 42 7
Products 25 6 25 6
Total provisions for inventories 67 14 67 0 14
Provisions for inventory
EUR thousand 1.1.2022 Creation Release Use 31.12.2022
Work in progress 38 42 38 0 42
Products 24 25 24 0 25
Total provisions for inventories 62 67 62 0 67

Based on the previous experience with product recycling, the company's management has decided, based on the
precautionary principle, to create a general provision for unfinished production, semi-finished products of its own
production and finished products in the amount of EUR 14 thousand for a possible future reduction of economic benefits

from these assets.

Lien

As of 31 December 2023, a lien on stocks has been established in favour of UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia,
a.s., pobocka zahrani¢nej banky. The value of the stock for which the lien is established is EUR 26,686 thousand.

9. Trade receivables

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022
Receivables from trade outside the Slovak Republic 459 133

Trade receivables from domestic trade 29 456 23413 21 035
Total trade receivables 29 915 23 546 21 035
Creation of a provision 2023 2022 2021
Initial balance as of 1.1. 38 22 4
Creation 8 33 20
Use 11 17 2
Dissolution 26 0 0
The balance as of 31.12. 8 38 22
Total residual value 29 907 23 508 21012
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The distribution of receivables based on maturity is as follows:

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022 |
Before due date 25810 21 366 16 884
overdue within 30 days 4 096 2142 4128
overdue from 30 days to 180 days

overdue from 180 days to 365 days 0
overdue more than 365 days 0
Total 29 907 23 508 21 012

The division of receivables by type is as follows:
EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022 |
Cooperators 15 250 7 007 6 453
External customers 5495 5862 3790
Related parties 9161 10 639 10 769
Together 29 907 23 508 21 012

Insurance

Receivables are insured by Atradius.

Lien

As of December 31, 2023, a lien on receivables in the amount of EUR 12,432 thousand has been established.

10. Other current assets
EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022
Animals 0 0 0
Advances granted 27 21 31
Other receivables 8 8 8
Receivables from employees 54 49 33
Value added tax 591 540 344
Accrual 5 2 8
Total other current assets 685 619 423

11. Cash and cash equivalents
EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022
Cash and cash equivalents 3 6 2
Current accounts in banks 2672 2720 1235
Total 2676 2725 1237

The company has an open overdraft account with UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s., which allows it to
draw a loan of up to EUR 13,000 thousand. As of December 31, 2023, the credit balance (in accordance with the agreed

credit framework) was EUR 11,489 (2022: EUR 0).

The company has an overdraft account with Komercni banka, a.s., which allows it to draw a loan of up to EUR 5,500
thousand. As at 31 December 2023, the credit balance (in accordance with the agreed credit framework) was EUR 870

thousand. EUR (2022: €0).
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12. Equity

Share capital and share premium

The approved, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 consisted of
16,657,272 ordinary shares at a nominal value of EUR 1 per share. The issue of shares is registered under the designation
ISIN SK1000025322.

As of January 1, 2022, the company reported a share capital of EUR 13,924,472.

On May 13, 2022, the Company changed its legal form from the original limited liability company to the current joint-stock
company with the number of shares of 13,924,472 with a nominal value of EUR 1 per share.

On May 22, 2022, the Company decided to underwrite new shares in the amount of 2,732,800 shares with a nominal
value of EUR 1 per share.

In June 2022, the Company entered the PX Start market on the Prague Stock Exchange. The result of these transactions
is an increase in the registered capital and also the creation of a share premium in the amount of EUR 24,695 thousand.

Shareholders are entitled to the payment of a dividend and the value of a share's vote at the Company's General Meeting

is determined as the ratio of the value of one share to the total value of the share capital. The following table lists the
Company's shareholders with the number of shares, ownership interest and voting rights.

31. december 2023

EUR thousand Number of shares  OBIE 0 ) interest O rights (30
Dipl. Ing. Artur Gevorkyan 12 849 758 12 850 77,14% 77,14%
BHS PE Fund 437 357 437 2,63% 2,63%
JEREMIE Co-Investment Fund 437 357 437 2,63% 2,63%
Free float 2932 800 2933 17,61% 17,61%
Total 16 657 272 16 657 100% 100%
31. december 2022

EUR thousand Number of shares  OBlE S0 ) interest 0 rights (30
Dipl. Ing. Artur Gevorkyan 12 849 758 12 850 77,14% 77,14%
BHS PE Fund 437 357 437 2,63% 2,63%
JEREMIE Co-Investment Fund 437 357 437 2,63% 2,63%
Free float 2932 800 2933 17,61% 17,61%
Total 16 657 272 16 657 100% 100%
Earnings / (loss) attributable per share

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022

Profit/ (loss) for the period in EUR thousand 3830 3446

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 16 657 272 15 746 339
Earnings/(loss) per share in euros 0,231 0,217

Statutory reserve fund

As at 31 December 2023, the statutory reserve fund is €1,424 thousand (as at 31 December 2022: €1,071 thousand).
According to Slovak legislation, the statutory reserve fund is created annually in the amount of at least 10% of the
company's net profit and at least up to 20% of the subscribed share capital (cumulatively). The statutory reserve fund can
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only be used to cover the company's losses and must not be used to pay the divident. The calculation of the reserve fund

is carried out in accordance with Slovak legislation.

Other Equity Funds

Other equity funds amount to EUR 11,307,079

Profit (loss) distribution

For the financial year ending December 31, 2023, the Company's management proposes to distribute the realized profit

in the amount of EUR 3,830 thousand as follows:

- Allocation to the statutory reserve fund: EUR 353 thousand

- Transfer to retained earnings of previous periods: CZK 3,477 thousand. EUR

13. Loans and credits

EUR thousand

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022
Long-term loans and credits 35959 36 035 38 100
Short-term loans and credits 18 684 8 337 13679
Total 54 642 44 372 51 779
Type of interest rate Due date Residual value Residual value

as at 31.12.2023 as at 31.12.2022

GEVORKYAN CZ 4,80% 14.11.2026 30 064 30 064 |
3M EURIBOR +
Komercni banka, a. s. 2.30% 31.12.2025 1838 2 888
3M EURIBOR +
Komeréni banka, a. s. 2.30% 6.8.2026 1979 2819
1M EURIBOR +
Komercni banka, a. s. 2.00% 870
BKS Bank AG 1,90% 20.6.2027 1433 1833
Unicredit bank Czech Republic and 1M EURIBOR +
Slovakia a.s. 2.60% 11 489
SACMI 140 443
uprava Sales&leaseback 6 829 6 325
Together 54 642 44 372
Kovenanty:

Komer¢ni banka
The loan agreement with Komer&ni banka, a.s. contains the following specific conditions that the company must comply
with:

1. Debt service coverage ratio greater than 120%.

2. Equity to balance sheet total ratio (total assets) greater than 30%.

3. The ratio of net financial debt to EBITDA on an annual basis is less than 4.5.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company did not meet the conditions of the debt service coverage ratio. The Company
communicated this non-performance to the bank in a timely manner and received a written notification from Komeréni
banka, a.s., in which the bank accepts the non-compliance with these conditions as of 31 December 2023 and at the
same time confirms that it will not exercise any of its rights arising from the non-compliance covenant. The Company
received the confirmation from the bank only in the following accounting period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not meet the conditions of the debt service coverage ratio. The Company
communicated this non-performance to the bank in a timely manner and received a written notification from Komeréni
banka, a.s., in which the bank accepts the non-compliance with these conditions as of 31 December 2022 and at the
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same time confirms that it will not exercise any of its rights arising from the non-compliance covenant. The Company
received the confirmation from the bank only in the following accounting period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not meet the conditions of the debt service coverage ratio and the ratio of
equity to balance sheet total. The Company communicated this non-performance to the bank in a timely manner and
received a written notice from Komer¢ni banka, a.s., in which the bank accepts the non-compliance with these conditions
as of 31 December 2021 and at the same time confirms that it will not exercise any of its rights arising from the non-
compliance covenant. The Company received the confirmation only in the following accounting period.

BKS Bank AG

The loan agreement with BKS Bank AG contains the following specific conditions that the company must comply with:
1. A ratio of equity to total asset value greater than 25%.

As of December 31, 2023 (as of December 31, 2022), the Company complied with these conditions.

Unicredit bank Czech Republic and Slovakia a.s.

The loan agreement with UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a. s. contains the following specific conditions
that the company must comply with:

1. Equity to balance sheet total ratio (total assets) greater than 30%.

2. The ratio of net financial debt to EBITDA on an annual basis is less than 5.0.

3. Ratio of current assets to current liabilities greater than 1.2.

4. Debt service coverage ratio greater than 1,2

As of December 31, 2023, the Company complied with these conditions.

Information on liens is provided in item 6 — Property, machinery and equipment, item 8 — Inventories and item 9 — Trade
receivables.

14. Bonds issued

On 1 June 2018, the Company issued bonds in the total amount of EUR 209,400,000 with an interest rate of 6.25% p.a.
and maturity in 2023.

On 15 March 2019, the Company issued bonds in the total amount of EUR 10,000,000 with an interest rate of 4.70% p.a.
and maturity in 2024.

On 3 July 2023, the company issued bonds in the total volume of CZK 205,000,000 with an interest rate of 8.50% p.a.
and maturity in 2028.

Details of individual bonds at the end of the current and immediately preceding accounting period are provided in the
table below.

Covenants

Bonds GEVORKYAN 4,7/2024 issued in EUR:

As of December 31, 2023, the company must meet several financial and non-financial covenants related to the issue of

GEVORKYAN 4.7/2024 bonds (ISIN SK4120014994). As of December 31, 2023, the company met all the defined
conditions. All liabilities from the bonds are settled on time and in full.

35



GEVORKYAN, a.s.
Notes on the individual financial statements for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

As of December 31, 2022, the Company must meet several financial and non-financial covenants related to the issue of
GEVORYKAN 4.7/2024 bonds (ISIN SK4120014994). As of December 31, 2022, the Company met all the defined
conditions. All liabilities arising from the bonds are settled on time and in full.

GEVORKYAN 8.5/2028 bonds issued in CZK:
During the year, the company issued GEVORKYAN 8.50/2028 bonds (ISIN CZ0000001813) in Czech crowns. As of
December 31, 2023, the Company must meet several financial and non-financial covenants related to the issue of

GEVORKYAN 8.50/2028 bonds (ISIN CZ0000001813). As of December 31, 2023, the company met all the defined
conditions. All liabilities from the bonds are settled on time and in full.
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The nominal
. Currency of yalue .Of the Interest rate  Effective interest  Residual value Residual Residual
ISIN Issuing date Due date issue issue in the ain % rate b.a. in % as at 31.12.2023 value as at value as at
original currency P& "™ p-a.in > e 31.12.2022 1.1.2022
EUR thousand in thousands.
GEVORKYAN 6,25/2023 CZ0000001037 2.7.2018 2.7.2023 CzK 209 400 6,25% 7,47% 0 8 633 8714
GEVORKYAN 4,70/2024  SK4120014994 15.3.2019 15.3.2024 EUR 10 000 4,70% 5,35% 10118 10 026 10011
GEVORKYAN 8,50/2028 CZ0000001813 3.7.2023 3.7.2028 CzK 205 000 8,50% 9,47% 8412 0 0
Total 18 530 18 659 18 725
Short-term 10 466 8771 160
Long-term 8 063 9 888 18 565
Total 18 529 18 659 18 725
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15. Trade Payables

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022
Trade Payables -19 971 -11 594 -12 061

As at 31 December 2023, the Company recorded overdue liabilities in the amount of EUR 2,751,682 (as at 31 December 2022:
EUR 1,607,043).

16. Other liabilities

Other short-term liabilities

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022

Advances received -32 -7 -4
Other liabilities -414 -84 -283
Commitments to employees -251 -206 -187
Other liabilities related to employees -190 -181 -159
Other liabilities - NFP subsidy -113 -113 -113
Accrual -1 263 -1793 -375
Socialny fond -2 -22 -23
Total other liabilities -2 266 -2 406 -1 146

Other long-term liabilities

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022
Other liabilities - NFP subsidy long-term -2 219 -2 332 -2 446
Total other liabilities -2 219 -2 332 -2 446

The table below contains a detail on the movements of state subsidies:

EUR thousand 2023 2022

Asof 1.1 2332 2 446
Received during the year

Dissolution into profit and loss accounts and other components of

comprehensive income 113 113

Situation as of 31.12. 2219] 2332

The Agreement on the Provision of a Non-Repayable Financial Contribution No. KaHR-111SP-1201/1171/168 concluded
between the Company and the Ministry of Economy of the Slovak Republic on behalf of the Slovak Innovation and Energy
Agency contains several financial and non-financial covenants that the Company must comply with. In the event of non-
compliance with the given conditions, there is a risk of reimbursement of the non-refundable financial contribution. As of
December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the company complied with these conditions. The company is regularly
inspected by the Slovak Innovation and Energy Agency in order to ensure the performance of the contract.

The Agreement on the Provision of a Non-Repayable Financial Contribution No. Val/DP/2016/1.2.2-02/D379 concluded
between the Company and the Ministry of Education, Science, Research and Sport of the Slovak Republic on behalf of
the Ministry of Economy of the Slovak Republic acting through the Slovak Innovation and Energy Agency contains several
financial and non-financial covenants that the Company must comply with. In the event of hon-compliance with the given
conditions, there is a risk of reimbursement of the non-refundable financial contribution. As of December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022, the company complied with these conditions. The company is regularly inspected by the Slovak
Innovation and Energy Agency in order to ensure compliance with the contract terms.

The creation and drawing of the social fund during the accounting period are shown in the following overview:
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EUR thousand 2023 2022

Asof 1.1 22 23
Creation at the expense of

costs 18 17
Pumping 38 19
Situation as of 31.12. 2 22
17. Reserves

EUR thousand 2023 2022

Initial balance as of 1.1. 166 157
Creation of reserves 183 167
Use of reserves 166 157
The balance as of 31.12. 183 | 166

During 2023 (2022), the company created provisions for unused holidays and the associated health and social insurance.

18. Revenues

Products vs. Services

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Revenues from the sale of own products 49 382 | 35210
therefrom:

External customers 37 168 26 943
Related parties 12 213 8 267
Revenues from the sale of

services 11 385 10 312
therefrom:

External customers 5 556 5078
Related parties 5829 5234
Total 60 767 45 522
Geographical distribution of revenues

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Slovakia 47 057 | 31796
EU 10 417 10 982
3 countries 3293 2745
Total 60 767 45 522

Risk of customer concentration

The turnover of customers whose individual turnover exceeded 10% of the total sales as of 31.12.2023 amounted cumulatively to EUR 45,411 thousand

(2022: EUR 28,521 thousand).

19. Change in ownproduction

Change in the status of internal
Status Status Status 9 inventories

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022 2023 2022

Work in progress and semi-finished products of

our own production 13931 14 780 10 903 -849 3877
Products 11711 8 621 6 950 3090 1670
Animals 0 0 0 0 0
Change in inventory 25 641 23 401 17 853 2 240 5548

| Shortages and damages
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Other 53 -5
Change in inventory 25 641 23 401 17 853 2293 5543

In the period from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, the Company activated materials and goods worth EUR 249
thousand (from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022: EUR 0 thousand).

In 2023, the Company continued to implement non-destructive product inspection methods. It has implemented new fully
automated workplaces using state-of-the-art robots and camera systems to detect any defects in products.

Thanks to these measures, in 2023, the company caught a non-conformity at the final inspection regarding products that
can be easily damaged during handling. These products have been recycled. All recycled material was used to produce
new products that were sold during the year or reported as inventories as of December 31, 2023. The company evaluates
the possibility of reusing all recycled material in production as the best and least costly way to avoid the risk of larger
complaints from customers.

Thanks to the early detection of potential risks, for which the company uses state-of-the-art non-destructive control
methods, the total number of non-conforming products claimed by customers in 2023 was at the PPM level of 139, which
means 139 bad products per 1,000,000 units delivered, i.e. only 0.0139%. As part of the continuation of the process of
long-term quality improvement, an automation and robotization department was created in the company, which is
specially dedicated, among other things, to the detection of hidden defects on products using camera systems, robotic
lines, etc. This significantly reduced manual handling of components during the production process and minimized the
risk of internal defects and cracks.

20. Material and energy consumption

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022

Material consumption 22 043 16 949
Fuel consumption 109 112
Energy consumption 1574 1690
Other 120 101
Totalr 23 846 18 851

21. Services

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Repair and maintenance of machinery and

equipment 232 312
Repair and maintenance of means of transport 106 95
Services - Consulting, accounting and auditing 318 224
Services - Rental 297 187
Services - External product processing 11 783 7 669
Services - Software 207 148
Services - Transport 216 221
Services - Waste removal 70 85
Services - Workforce provided 0 52
Other services 495 343
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| Total 13726 9336 |
EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Audit of financial
statements 107 73
Assurance audit services with the exception of the audit of accounts
Tax Advisory 4 3
Other non-audit services
Together 111 76
22. Personnel costs
EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Wages and bonuses 3539 3422
Social and health insurance 1267 1207
Other social costs 184 149
Total 4990 4778
Of which management:
EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Wages and bonuses 172 108
Social and health insurance 62 38
Other social costs
Total 233] 146
23. Other operating result
EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Profit / (loss) from the sale of assets 69 -55
Insurance 41 53
Provision for receivables -6 17
Other operating expenses 24 26
Other operating income -401 -150
Total -274 -109
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24. Financial operations

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Financial revenue

Interest income 80 91
Exchange rate gains 394 255
Total financial revenue 475 346

Financial costs

Interest - leasing -255 -162
Interest Loans -2 102 -1 885
Interest on bonds -1257 -1191
Exchange rate losses -366 -484
Bank fees -69 -115
Other costs of financial activity -319 -1 060
Total financial costs -4 369 -4 897

Profit/(loss) arising from financial operations,
net -3 894 -4 551

Other costs of financial activities in 2022 were mainly remuneration for the issue of shares in the amount of EUR 574 thousand.

25. Income tax and deferred tax

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022

Income tax payable 287 284
Deferred income tax 889 801
Total 1176 1 085

Effective tax

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022

Profit before tax 5009 4529

Income tax 1052 21% 951 21%
Tax-deductible costs 126 3% 128 3%

Non-taxable income

Impact of unreported deferred tax assets

Utilisation of tax losses

Tax rate change

Other -2 5

Total income tax 1176 23% 1085 23%
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Movements of deferred tax liability (net) during the period 2023-2022

R . . Recognised in
ecognl_sed in other

1.1.2023 the Profit and comprehensive 31.12.2023

Loss Account A
EUR thousand income
Tax expenses after
payment -5 -2 -7
Stocks -14 11 -3
Reserves -9 -18 -27
Accounts payable 0 0 0
NFP subsidy -345 -42 -387
Other, non-tax-deductible costs 0 0 0
Fixed assets 4232 939 5172
Deferred tax liability reported 3859 889 4748
Recognised in Reco(?trr\]lesred n

1.1.2022 It_lz)esISDTB(\)Cthoaunr:jt com.prehensive 31.12.2022
EUR thousand iIncome
Tax expenses after
payment -15 10 -5
Stocks -13 -1 -14
Reserves -14 5 -9
Accounts payable -3 3 0
NFP subsidy -297 -48 -345
Other, non-tax-deductible costs
Fixed assets 3401 832 4232
Deferred tax liability reported 3058 801 3 859

26. Fair value data

The following overview contains data on the carrying amount and fair value of the Company's financial assets and

liabilities that are not recognised at fair value:

Book value Fair Value

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022
EUR thousand
Financial
liabilities
Bonds Issued
(Level 2) 18 529 18 659 18 725 19 437 18 640 19 151
Long-term loans
(level 3) 30 064 30 064 30 009 28 982 29172 32711
Total 48 593 48 723 48 734 48 419 47 812 51 863

Level 1 - fair value determined on the basis of quoted prices offered on active markets for identical assets;
Level 2 - fair value determined using input-based calculation models that are observable, either directly or indirectly, in

active markets;

Level 3 - fair value determined using calculation models based on inputs that are not observable, either directly or

indirectly, in active markets.

The table does not list financial instruments for which the carrying amount is considered to be an approximation of fair

value.

27. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
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EUR thousand 1.1.2023 ISrCe;\?ang\r/]vtn/ Repayment Interest Other 31.12.2023
Loans and credits 44 372 12 358 -4 609 2103 419 54 643
Lease liabilities 1307 3052 -2 994 255 -704 916
Bonds issued 18 659 -1 285 1257 -102 18 529
Total liabilities from financial

assets 64 337 15410 -8 888 3616 -387 74 087
EUR thousand 1.1.2022 'Sf;fv”(;g\r,‘vtn’ Repayment Interest Other 31.12.2022
Loans and credits 51779 0 -9 690 1515 768 44 372
Lease liabilities 1426 2 754 -2 897 158 -134 1307
Bonds issued 18 725 -1514 1191 256 18 659
Total liabilities from financial

assets 71 930 2 754 -14 101 2 864 891 64 337

28. Information on financial risk management

This section provides details of the risks to which the Company is exposed and how to manage them. The company is
exposed to risk in the following areas:

- credit risk

- liquidity risk

- currency risk

- interest rate risk

Management has overall responsibility for determining and controlling the Company's risk management.
Credit risk

The Company is exposed to this risk primarily in trade receivables and other receivables. The amount of exposure to this risk
is expressed by the carrying amount of these assets on the balance sheet in the event that no form of guarantee is issued. The
carrying amount of receivables reflects the highest possible accounting loss that would have to be accounted for in the event
that the counterparty completely defaults on its contractual obligations and all collateral and guarantees are zero. This value
therefore far exceeds the expected losses contained in the provision for overdue receivables. Before concluding significant
contracts, the Company's management evaluates the credit risk associated with the counterparty at its regular meetings. In the
event of identification of significant risks, the Company will not proceed to the conclusion of the contract.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company was exposed to the following credit risk:

Banks Other_Fin_anciaI Other I_egal Total

EUR thousand Institutions entities

Financial assets |
Trade receivables 29 907 29 907
Cash and cash equivalents 2676 2676
Other receivables 0
Total 2676 0 29 907 32583 I

As of December 31, 2022, the Company was exposed to the following credit risk:

o el Oterlesd o |
Financial assets ‘
Trade receivables 23508 23508
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Cash and cash equivalents 2725 2725

Other receivables 0

Total 2725 0 23 508 26 233
As of 1 January 2022, the Company was exposed to the following credit risk:

Other Financial Other legal

EUR thousand Banks Institutions entities Total

Financial assets

Trade receivables 21013 21013

Cash and cash equivalents 1237 1237

Other receivables 0

Total 1237 0 21 013 22 250
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises as part of the general financing of the Company's activities and the management of financial positions.
It includes the risk of not being able to finance the asset at the agreed maturity and interest rate, as well as the risk of not
being able to realise the asset at a reasonable price within a reasonable timeframe. The Company's management focuses

on liquidity management and monitoring.

The following table provides an analysis of the Company's financial assets and liabilities grouped by residual maturity.
This analysis represents the most conservative variant of residual maturities, including the inclusion of interest based on
contractual terms. Therefore, in the case of liabilities, the earliest possible repayment is reported and the latest possible

repayment for assets.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company's financial assets and liabilities had the following maturities at nominal value:

Less than 1 5years
EUR thousand year 1-5years anél more Total Book value
Financial assets
Trade receivables 29 907 29 907 29 907
Cash and cash equivalents 2676 2676 2676
Other receivables 0
otalT 32 852 0 0 32582 32583

Less than 1 5years
EUR thousand year 1-5years anc)i/ more Total Book value
Financial commitments
Bonds 10934 11 126 0 22 060 18 529
Loans and credits 18 604 41 009 0 59 613 54 643
Lease liabilities 389 559 949 916
Trade Payables 19971 19971 19971
Other short-term liabilities 2 266 2 266 2 266
Total 52 163 52 694 0 104 858 96 325

As of December 31, 2022, the Company's financial assets and liabilities had the following maturities:
Less than 1 Syears
1-5years and Together Book value

EUR thousand year more
Financial assets
Trade receivables 23508 23508 23508
Cash and cash equivalents 2725 2725 2725
Other receivables 0
Total 26 234 0 0 26 234 26 234

Less 5years

than1 1-5years and Together Book value
EUR thousand year more
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Financial liabilities

Bonds 9 565 10 235 0 19 800 18 659
Loans and credits 7 094 46 919 239 54 252 44 372
Lease liabilities 496 846 11 1353 1307
Trade Payables 11 594 11594 11594
Other short-term

liabilities 2 406 2 406 2 405
Total 31156 58 000 250 89 406 78 337

As of January 1, 2022, the Company's financial assets and liabilities had the following maturities:

5years
Less than 1 1-5years gnd Together Book value
EUR thousand year more
Financial assets
Trade receivables 21013 21013 21013
Cash and cash equivalents 1237 1237 1237
Other receivables 0
Total 22 250 0 0 22 250 22 250
Less than 1 5years
year 1-5years and Together Book value
EUR thousand more
Financial liabilities
Bonds 1513 19 800 0 21314 18 725
Loans and credits 12 282 53139 1049 66 470 51779
Lease liabilities 1115 365 1480 1426
Trade Payables 12 061 12 061 12 061
Other short-term liabilities 1146 1146 1144
Total 28 117 73 304 1049 102 470 85 135

Currency Risk and Sensitivity Analysis for Foreign Currency Instruments

Currency risk is the risk of a change in the value of an enterprise's assets and liabilities due to a change in the exchange
rate. The Company is exposed to currency risk mainly due to purchases in the USD currency.

Value of assets and liabilities in the purchase currency as at 31.12.2023:

EUR thousand 31.12.2023

usD

Profit
(loss) in
case of
an
CzK increase
in the
exchang
e rate by
100bp

Profit (loss) in
case of a 100bp
rate drop

Together

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables

Total

882
2317

0 -9
-23

882
2317

3199

0 -32

32

3199

EUR thousand 31.12.2023

uUsD

Profit
(loss) in
case of
an
CZK increase
in the
exchang
e rate by
100bp

Profit (loss) in
case of a 100bp
rate drop

Total

Financial commitments
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Bonds 8412 83 -83 8412
Loans and credits 0
Lease liabilities 0
Trade Payables 49 98 2 -2 147
Other short-term liabilities 0
Total 49 8510 85 -85 8 559

Value of assets and liabilities in the purchase currency as at 31.12.2022:

Profit
(loss) in
case of
an Profit (loss) in
uUsD CzZK increase case of a 100bp Total
in the rate drop
exchang
EUR thousand e rate by
31.12.2022 100bp
Financial assets
Trade receivables 630 0 -6 6 630
Cash and cash equivalents 1894 793 -27 27 2 688
Other receivables 0
Total 2524 793 -33 33 3318
Profit
(loss) in
case of
an Profit (loss) in
uUsD CzZK increase case of a 100bp Total
in the rate drop
exchang
EUR thousand e rate by
31.12.2022 100bp
Financial commitments
Bonds 8 633 85 -85 8 633
Loans and credits 0
Lease liabilities 0
Trade Payables 135 44 2 -2 180
Other short-term
liabilities 0
Total 135 8 677 87 -87 8813
Value of assets and liabilities in the purchase currency as of 1 January 2022:
Profit
(loss) in
case of
an Profit (loss) in
uUsD CzK increase case of a 100bp Total
in the rate drop
exchang
e rate by
EUR thousand 1.1.2022 100bp
Financial assets
Trade receivables 858 -8 8 858
Cash and cash equivalents 0
Other receivables 0
Total 858 0 -8 8 858
Profit
(loss)in  Profit (loss) in
usb CzK case of case of a 100bp Total
an rate drop
EUR thousand 1.1.2022 increase
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in the
exchang
e rate by
100bp
Financial commitments
Bonds 8714 86 -86 8714
Loans and credits 0
Lease liabilities 0
Trade Payables 67 1 -1 67
Other short-term
liabilities 0
Total 67 8714 87 -87 8781

Interest rate risk

The Company's operations are exposed to the risk of changes in interest rates. The amount of this risk is equal to the amount
of interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities for which the interest rate at maturity or at the time of change is different
from the current interest rate. Therefore, the period during which a fixed interest rate is set for a financial instrument reflects the
period during which the Company is exposed to the risk of changes in interest rates. The overview below reflects the Company's
exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates based on the contractual maturity of financial instruments. As at 31 December
2023, 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2022, the Company has the following assets and liabilities related to the interest rate:

Interest rate p.a.

EUR thousand in % 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022

Fixed interest rate

GEVORKYAN Cz 4,80% 30 064 30 064 30 009

BKS Bank AG 1,90% 1433 1833 1830

Slovak Guarantee and 3,30% 0 0 1089

Development Bank, a. s.

Slovak Guarantee and 1,90% 0 0 1850

Development Bank, a. s.

GEVORKYAN 6,25/2023 6,25% 0 8 633 8714

GEVORKYAN 4,70/2024 4,70% 10118 10 026 10011

GEVORKYAN 8,50/2028 8,50% 8412 0 0

SACMI 1,95% 140 443 738

Sales & leaseback transactions 6 829 6 325 5549

Total 56 996 57 324 59 790
Interest rate p.a.

EUR thousand in % 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 1.1.2022

Variable interest rate

Komeréni banka, a. s. 3M EURIBOR + 1838 2 888 3938
2.30%

Komeréni banka, a. s. 3M EURIBOR + 1979 2819 3659
2.30%

Komeréni banka, a. s. 1M EURIBOR + 870 0 0
2.00%

Unicredit bank Czech Republic 1M EURIBOR + 11 489 0 0

and Slovakia a.s. 2.60%

Unicredit bank Czech Republic 1M EURIBOR 0 0 3117

and Slovakia a.s. +1.90%

Total 16 176 5707 10714
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Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates would have the following impact on profit or loss and cash flow sensitivity:

Profit (loss)

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 100 bb increase 100 bp drop
Variable interest rate instruments (171) 171
Impact (171) 171

Profit (loss)

EUR thousand 31.12.2022 100 bb increase 100 bp drop
Variable interest rate instruments (67) 67
Impact (67) (67)

The Company's interest-bearing liabilities are remunerated at a variable interest rate referring to EURIBOR. The company
considers variable interest rate to be self-management of interest rate risk. When there is economic expansion, EURIBOR
grows, but at the same time the economic performance of the population grows and the company has better sales and profits.
When there is an economic recession, it behaves exactly the opposite.

In the previous period, when EURIBOR was negative, the variable interest component of the total interest rate did not affect the
profit or loss and cash flow sensitivity, as according to loan agreements, the value of EURIBOR is then taken at the level of 0%.
In the current period, EURIBOR is achieving positive values, and therefore a decrease by 100 basis points in interest rates
would have an impact on the economic result and cash flow sensitivity.

29. Related parties

Identification of related parties

As set out in the following overview, the Company is related to its shareholders who have substantial influence in the

Company and other parties as of December 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and January 1, 2022, or during the period
from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023.

Information on the economic relationships between the entity and related parties:

Value expression of trade

EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
GPM Tools, s.r.o.

Revenues from own products (revenue) 12 213 8 267
Revenues from the sale of services (revenue) 5829 5234

Revenues from the sale of intangible fixed assets and tangible fixed assets

(revenue)

0 855
Revenues from the sale of unnecessary materials (revenue) 1 95
Purchase of fixed assets 13779 11 760
Buying Inventory 5525 2102
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Procurement of services and other costs (cost) 1273 1555

Gevorkyan CZ, s.r.o.

Interest expense of borrowing (expense) 1478 1515

Borrowing fees (expense)

Value expression of trade
EUR thousand 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
GPM Tools, s.r.o.
Trade receivables 9161 10 639
Trade payables 3733 5478
Gevorkyan CZ, s.r.o.
Other liabilities 30 087 30 064

30. Events that occurred after the date on which the financial statements are prepared

After 31 December 2023, no other events occurred that would require disclosure or recognition in the financial
statements for 2023.

31. Capital liabilities and capital management
The Company's management approaches capital management in order to ensure a sufficient amount of funds for the
planned investments in the period for which the investments were planned, if necessary in cooperation with the use
of bank loans and bonds.
For more information on the bonds issued, see Section 14 — Bonds issued.

For more information on the loans received, see Section 13 — Loans and credits.

The provisions of Slovak law apply to the use of the statutory reserve fund. For more information, see Section 12 —
Equity.

The Company is not subject to any other external capital management requirements.

During the period from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, there were no changes in the Company's
management's approach to capital management.

32. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Given that many areas of Slovak tax law have not yet been sufficiently verified in practice, there is uncertainty as to how

the tax authorities will apply them. The degree of this uncertainty cannot be quantified and will only disappear once legal
precedents or official interpretations by the competent authorities are available.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders, Supervisory Board and to the Board of Directors of GEVORKYAN, a.s.:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of GEVORKYAN, a s, (“the Company"), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2023, the income statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance for the year
then ended in accordance with the Act on Accounting No 431/2002 Coll., as amended by later legislation

(“the Act on Accounting”).
Basis for Opinfon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs”) and Regulation
(EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on specific
requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities (“Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014
of the European Parfiament and the Council®). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Act on Statutory Audit No 423/2015 Coll.
and on amendments to the Act on Accounting No 431/2002 Coll., as amended by later legislation (“the
Act on Statutory Audit”) related to ethics, including Auditor’s Code of Ethics, that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled other requirements of these provisions related to ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report, inciuding in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.

Revenue recognition
Sales revenues from own work and goods are Our audit procedures included consideration of

stated net of VAT, discounts and deductions the appropriateness of the Company’s revenue
(rebates, bonuses, credit notes, etc.). Sales recognition accounting policies and assessment
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revenues are recognized at the date of delivery of
goods or provision of services.

Revenue of EUR 15,699 thousand is realized
from sales of products to cooperants who perform
further processing of products. The processing is
necessary for further sale of the products to
external customers. Risk and rewards of the
products are transferred to cooperants. Revenue
is recognized at the moment of the transfer.

The revenue recognition is a key audit matter due
to the complexity of revenues, complex revenue
recognition criteria and significance of the related
balance.

Impairment of know-how

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
know-how relating to powder metaliurgy and
metal injection moulding was EUR 10 783
thousand,

The Company's policy is to annually consider,
based on updated sales projection, whether there
are any impairment indicators. If impairment
indicators are identified, the Company prepares
impairment medel to assess any impairment to
be recognized.

of compliance with the Act on Accounting. We
evaluated and tested the design and the
operation effectiveness of key controls within the
sales processes.

We performed an analysis of revenue based on
our industry knowledge separately for external
customers and sales to cooperants.

For transactions close to the balance sheet date,
we assessed whether revenue was accounted for
into the correct accounting period. We selected a
sample of transactions, including material sale
invoices near the balance sheet date. We
assessed whether these transactions agree to
the underlying contractua! information or other
supporting documents which demonstrated when
the obligations had been fulfilled by the parties
towards the transaction.

On a sample of significant credit notes issued
after the balance sheet date we assessed
whether they were recorded in the correct period.

We obtained debtors confirmations from selected
customers as of 31 December 2023 and agreed
the amounts to the Company's accounting
records.

We also assessed the adequacy of the
Company's disclosures in respect of the
accounting policies on revenue recognition set
outin Note 3.1) Revenues of notes to the financial
statements and whether they are complant with
the Act on Accounting.

Our audit procedures included consideration of
the appropriateness of the Company's
accounting policies in respect of know-how and
assessment of compliance with the Act on
Accounting.

For identification of potential impairment of the
carrying amount of know-how we obtained the
updated sales projection prepared by the
Company.

We involved valuation specialists to support our
assessment of the assumptions and methods
that were used in assessing the valuation model
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The impairment of know-how is a key audit matter
due to the complexity of the model, significant
judgement of the management when determining
projected sales, license fee and discount factor
and dependency on future business
development.

Compliance with debt covenants

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
debt (bonds and loans), on which the Company
must comply with the covenants, is EUR 36,388
thousand.

Long-term loans, short-term loans and bonds are
recognized at nominal value. As short-term
should be also recognized parts of long-term
loans and bonds that are payable within one year
since the balance sheet date and also long-term
loans and bonds on which the Company is
i pliant with covenants at the balance sheet
date.

Due to the significance of the balance of the
bonds and bank loans on which the Company
has to comply with the covenants we consider
this area to be key audit matter.

that calculates know-how value. We assessed
reasonableness of updated sales projection and
the related expected future cash flows.

We aiso assessed the adequacy of the
Company's disclosures In respect of the
accounting policies on know-how set out in Note
3.a) Non-Current Intangible assets of notes to the
financial statements and whether they are
compiiant with the Act on Accounting.

Our audit procedures included consideration of
the appropriateness of the Company's
accounting policies in respect of long-term loans,
short-term loans and bonds and assessment of
compliance with the Act on Accounting,

We obtained confirmations from banks as of
31 December 2023 and agreed the amounts to
the Company’s accounting records.

We performed review of loan agreements and
issue terms of bonds to assess if all covenants
were taken to consideration in the Company's
review of compliance with debt covenants.

We recalculated and assessed compliance with
the debt covenants at the balance sheet date.

We also assessed the adequacy of the
Company's disclosures in respect of the
accounting policies on long-term loans, short-
term loans and bonds set out in Note 3.g)
Liabilities of notes to the financial statements and
whether they are compliant with the Act on
Accounting, and adequacy of the Company's
disclosures in respect of the compliance with debt
covenants as set out in Note 14 Bank Loans and
Borrowings.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give true and fair view in
accordance with the Act on Accounting, and for such internal control as management determines is
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necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audt of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament
and the Council will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs and Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European
Parliament and the Council, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and cbtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements including the
presented information as well as whether the financial statements captures the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that leads to their fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on Information Disclosed in the Annual Report

Management is responsible for the information disclosed in the annual report, prepared based on
requirements of the Act on Accounting. Our opinion on the financial statements expressed above does
not apply to other information contained in the annual report.

In connection with audit of the financial statements it is our responsibility to understand the information
disclosed in the annual report and to consider whether such information is not materially inconsistent
with audited financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit of the financial statements, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We considered whether the Company’s annual report contains information, disciosure of which is
required by the Act on Accounting.

Based on procedures performed during the audit of financial statements, in our opinion:

- Information disclosed in the annual report, prepared for 2023, is consistent with the financial
statements for the relevant year,

- The annual report contains information based on the Act on Accounting.

Additionally, based on our understanding of the Company and its situation, obtained in the audit of the
financial statements, we are required to disclose whether material misstatements were identified in the
annual report, which we received prior to the date of issue of this auditor's report. In this regard, there
are no findings which we should disclose,

Independent assurance report on the compliance of the presentation of the financial statements with the
requirements of the European Single Electronic Format ("ESEF")

We have been engaged by the Company to conduct a reasonable assurance engagement to verify the
compliance of the presentation of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023 included in the Annual Financial Report (“the Presentation of the financial
statements”) with the requirements of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815 of
17 December 2018 supplementing Directive 2004/109/EC of the European Parliament and of the
Council with regard to regulatory technical standards on the specification of a single electronic reporting
format (“the ESEF Regulation”).

Description of subject matter and applicable criteria

The Presentation of the financial statements has been applied by the management to comply with the
requirements of the ESEF Regulation. The applicable requirements regarding the Presentation of the
financial statements are contained in the ESEF Regulation,
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The requirements described in the preceding paragraph with respect to the Presentation of the financial
statements constitute, in our view, appropriate criteria to form a reasonable assurance conciusion.

et LNalyed Wilth governanc

Responsibility of the management and

The management is responsible for the Presentation of the financial statements that complies with the
requirements of the ESEF Regulation.

This responsibility includes:

* preparation of the financial statements in XHTML format; and

» designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant for the preparation of the
Presentation of the financial statements which is free from material non-compliance with the
requirements of the ESEF Regulation.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process, which also includes the preparation of the financial statements that also comply with the
requirements of the ESEF Regulation.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express a reasonable assurance conclusion whether the Presentation of the
financial statements complies, in all material respects, with the requirements of the ESEF Regulation.

We conducted our reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with the International Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits and Reviews of
Historical Financial Information, (“the ISAE 3000(R)"), issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board (“the IAASB). This standard requires that we comply with ethical
requirements, plan and perform procedures to obtain reasonable assurance whether the Presentation
of the financial statements complies, in all material respects, with the requirements of the ESEF
Regulation.

The nature, timing, and extent of procedures performed depend on the auditor's judgment. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but it does not guarantee that the service performed in
accordance with ISAE 3000(R) always detects material non-compliance.

gdence

Auditor’s quality conts o]

We apply the provisions of International Standard on Quality Control 1 (issued by the IAASE) and,
accordingly, maintain a comprehensive system of quality control, including documented policies and
procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal
and regulatory requirements.

We comply with independence and other ethical requirements of the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity,
objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behaviour.

Summary of the work performed

Our planned and performed procedures were aimed at obtaining reasonable assurance that the
Presentation of the financial statements complies, in all material respects, with the requirements of the
ESEF Regulation. Our procedures inciuded in particular:

SIS
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* obtaining an understanding of the internal control system and processes relevant to the
application of the electronic reporting format of the financial statements, including the
preparation of the XHTML format; and

« verification whether the XHTML format was properly applied.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
conclusion.
Conclusion

In our opinion, based on the procedures performed, the Presentation of the financial statements
complies, in all material respects, with the requirements of the ESEF Regulation.

Other requirements on content of auditor's report in compiiance with Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of
the European Parliament and of the Council

Agpol f Audi
We were appointed as the statutory auditor by the General Meeting of Owners of the Company on
23 June 2023. Total uninterrupted engagement period, including previous renewals (extension of the

period for which we were originally appointed) and reappointments for the statutory auditor, has lasted
for 8 years.

onsistency with Additional Report to Supervisory Board

Our audit opinion on the financial statements expressed herein is consistent with the additional report
to the Supervisory Board of the Company, which we issued on the same date as the issue date of this
report.

Non-audit Services

No prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the
European Parliament and of the Council were provided by us to the Company and we remain
independent from the Company in conducting the audit.

In addition to statutory audit services and services disclosed in the financial statements, no other
services which were provided by us to the Company.

30 April 2024
Bratislava, Slovak Republic

Ernst & Young Slovakia, spol. s r.0.
SKAU Licence No. 257

Ing. Tomas Precek, statutory auditor
UDVA Licence No. 1067
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